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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®/E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited, | am pleased to report the work of the
Board for the Company for 2015.

In 2015, faced with the downward pressure of the China’s
macroeconomy, the overall economic landscape was in a
transitional crucial period. In view of the challenging and uncertain
economic conditions, the Group adopted a prudent and flexible
management model and actively adjusted its structure to create
value for shareholders.

l. ADHERING TO TRADITIONAL AREAS WITH
COMPARATIVE STRENGTHS, EXPLORING EMERGING
AREAS AND FOCUSING ON THE OVERALL LAYOUT OF
THE INDUSTRY

The infrastructure construction business is the principal
business of the Group in its long-term development.
Leverage on its traditional strengths, the Group made
constructive progress in entering other related areas in
the industry. Our major projects included the progress
in acceptance of completion and transfer of Zhongfang
Chaozhou Jing Man Industrial Park Project, the acquisition
of 30% equity interest in Guangzhou Hai Yue Real
Estate Development Company Limited* and in 2016 the
acquisition of 30% equity interest in Shishi Shen Guo
Tou Commercial Property Company Limited*. Up to the
date of this report, Chaozhou Jinshan has completed
the acceptance of completion and transfer of 3,400-mu
construction land in accumulated total and revenue of
totalling RMB715 million recognised in the financial
statements. The acceptance of completion and transfer
of the remaining construction land is still in progress. As
the project is a cooperation project with the government,
the Group enjoys great government support. Accordingly,
we strongly believe that the project will generate stable
income to the Group and the participation in other
properties development assists the Group to formulate
overall planning in properties development, creating
the synergy effect and an efficient and interactive new
platform. This is also an important part of the Group's
long-term development strategy.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®|E

20155

FOLLOWING GOVERNMENT CALL TO DEVELOP
INTEGRATED FINANCE

The finance and credit business is an important business
segment of the Group. In 2015, the Group recorded rapid
growth in revenue from credit business in Hong Kong
and brought in capital from competitive investors for the
expansion of credit business as well as to strengthen its
capital base. In 2016, the Group intends to expand its
mainland credit business. At the same time, we actively
explored the finance business opportunities in China. In
2015, we subscribed 8.50 million shares in Chaozhou Rural
Credit Cooperative*. Backing by the PRC government’s
policy to encourage private capital investment in the
financial institutions, capitalising on the strong support
from government policies and management experience
of the financial industry in Hong Kong, the investment in
Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative* will certainly benefit
the Group.

FURTHER EXPANDING ITS SHARE CAPITAL AND
STRENGTHENING INTEGRATED COMPETENCE

Issue of new shares is an important means to building
a sound financial structure of the Group. In 2015 and
February 2016, the Group completed the issue and
allotment of new H Shares and Domestic Shares. Up to
the date of this report, the issue of new shares has been
completed and the total issued share capital of the Group
increased to RMB1,469,376,000. The issue of new shares
has further strengthened the financial condition and
competitive advantage of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®/E

In 2016, the Group will continue upholding the current
development strategy and expand the business horizon. As
for operations, the Group will endeavour to strengthen the
development of construction of infrastructure business, increase
the efforts in expanding its credit business and seek better
investment opportunities to create greater value. As for corporate
governance, the Group has engaged PRO-WIS Risk Advisory
Services Limited to provide internal audit function to review
internal control and risk management system in 2016 so as to
strengthen the internal control and risk management of the
Company.

Finally, on behalf of the Board and the management, | would
like to extend heartfelt thanks to all the shareholders, business

partners and employees for their strong support to the Group.

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

29 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDSN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the 2015 Financial Year
amounted to RMB311,400,000 (2014 Corresponding Period:
RMB86,248,000), representing a very significant increase of
approximately 261.1% as compared with the 2014 Corresponding
Period. The substantial increase in revenue is primarily due to
the increase in income generated from the construction of
infrastructure and development of properties in the PRC and credit
business in Hong Kong.

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Group has completed the
acceptance and transfer of 1,400 mu (2014 Corresponding
Period: 400 mu) construction land of the Zhongfang Chaozhou
Jing Nan Industrial Park Project and recorded the revenue for 2015
Financial Year of RMB294,700,000 (2014 Corresponding Period:
RMB84,200,000). The acceptance and transfer of the remaining
construction land of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial
Park Project will be completed in the coming years.

Credit business and securities investments contributed the revenue
for the 2015 Financial Year amounted to RMB16,026,000 (2014
Corresponding Period: RMB2,048,000) and RMB674,000 (2014
Corresponding Period: RMB nil) respectively. The turnover for
credit business increased by 682.5% as compared with 2014
Corresponding Period and no turnover for securities investments
was recorded in the 2014 corresponding Period.

Profit before tax for the 2015 Financial Year amounted to
RMB3,724,000 (2014 Corresponding Period: RMB45,216,000)
representing a decrease in profit before tax of approximately
91.8% over 2014 Corresponding Period. The decrease in profit
before tax for the 2015 Financial Year is primarily attributable to
the loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments amounted to
RMB9,377,000 (2014 Corresponding Period: RMB561,000) and
the loss arising from the change of fair value on held-for-trading
investments amounted to RMB7,917,000 (2014 Corresponding
Period: RMB nil), setting off against the gain arising from the fair
value change on convertible instruments designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of RMB1,084,000
(2014 Corresponding Period: RMB nil) and exchange gain as
a result of the appreciation of Hong Kong Dollars against the
reporting currency of RMB in the sum of RMB11,578,000 (2014
Corresponding Period: RMB nil). The decrease in the profit for the
2015 Financial Year is also attributable to the recognize of the
gain from the disposal of Guangzhou Zhongzhan amounted to
RMB45,677,000 in the 2014 Corresponding Period but no such
gain was recorded in the 2015 Financial Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for the 2015 Financial Year
amounted to RMB6,497,000, representing a significant increase
of approximately 462.5% as compared with RMB1,155,000
for the 2014 Corresponding Period. The increase in income tax
expenses was mainly attributable to the combined tax effect of
expenses not deductible for tax purpose and of tax losses not
recognized totalling RMB8,159,000 (2014 Corresponding Period:
RMB690,000).

Donations

For the 2015 Financial Year, the Group has made donations
totaling RMB2 million for promoting the Chinese traditional
culture.

Loss/earnings per share

Loss per share was approximately RMB0.24 cents comparing with
the earnings per share for the 2014 Corresponding Period of
RMB4.32 cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Infrastructure Construction and Property Development
Business

The infrastructure construction project in relation to the phase |
of the Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project for 4,500-mu
construction land has been basically completed, subject to the
acceptance of completion and transfer of the construction land in
accordance with the procedures for acceptance of completion and
transfer of the cooperation agreement

During the 2015 Financial Year, Chaozhou Jinshan Investment
and Development Company Limited* confirmed the acceptance
of completion and transfer of the 1,400-mu (2014 Corresponding
Period: 400-mu) construction land.

Credit Business

Following the acquisition of Chung Hwa Finance in 2014, the
Group expanded credit business in Hong Kong during the 2015
Financial Year. Chung Hwa Finance, a licensed money lender
in Hong Kong, has recorded revenue of RMB16,026,000 (2014
Corresponding Period: RMB2,048,000) for the 2015 Financial
Year, an increase of 6.8 times. The operation of credit business is
in full year during the 2015 Financial Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDSN

Securities Investments Business

The Group mainly invested in the ARHL Shares and ARHL
Convertible Bonds in the 2015 Financial Year in the sum of
HK$75,148,000 (excluding transaction cost) and HK$56,160,000
respectively. In view of the uncertain stock market conditions and
poor performance of ARHL share price, the Group has disposed
most of the ARHL Shares during the 2015 Financial Year. All
the remaining ARHL Shares and ARHL Convertible Bonds were
subsequently disposed in January 2016. Accordingly, loss on
disposal of held-for-trading investments of RMB9,377,000 (2014
Corresponding Period: RMB561,000) and loss arising from fair
value change on held-for-trading investments of RMB7,917,000
(2014 Corresponding Period: RMB nil) were recorded in the 2015
Financial Year.

The convertible instrument designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss recorded a gain from the fair value
change of RMB1,084,000 for the 2015 Financial Year (2014
Corresponding Period: RMB nil).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to focus on the existing infrastructure
construction business in the PRC and to expand the credit
business in Hong Kong. The Group will also identify projects with
investment potential from time to time.

Accordingly, the Group has made certain significant investments,
details of which are set out in the paragraphs headed "Major
Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associate Companies”
and “Events after the Reporting Period”.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent financial management policy to
manage the working capital. As of 31 December 2015, the
Group's total assets amounted to RMB923,346,000 (2014
RMB769,482,000), representing an increase of 20.0%. Non-
current assets and currents assets as at 31 December 2015 were
RMB333,643,000 (2014: RMB127,209,000) and RMB589,703,000
(2014: RMB642,273,000) respectively. The increase in non-current
assets by RMB206,434,000, being 162.3%, is attributable to the
deposit paid for the acquisition of 30% in Hai Yue Real Estate and
investment in ARHL Shares and ARHL Convertible Bonds. The assets
were financed by current liabilities of RMB134,624,000 (2014:
RMB181,551,000) and shareholders’ equity of RMB788,722,000
(2014: RMB587,931,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD

As of 31 December 2015, the Group has no bank borrowings. The
Group's current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 4.38
(2014: 3.54) and gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was 0.15
(2014: 0.24).

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Company have completed
the issuance of 120,000,000 Domestic Shares of RMB1 each
and the placing of 84,080,000 H-Shares at RMB1 each and
accordingly increased the share capital from RMB1,020,400,000
to RMB1,224,480,000 as at 31 December 2015. The Group is
actively pursuing to expand the capital base of the Company.
Details of the enlarging of the share capital are set out in the
paragraph headed ‘Enlarging Share Capital’.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Acquisition of 4.96% in Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative

On 23 July 2015, Zhongfang Chaozhou, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of
8,500,000 shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative* |
w2 ER{ERASERE from the Independent Third Party at a
total consideration of RMB12,750,000, representing 4.96% of
the total issued share of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative. This
transaction does not constitute any notifiable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Acquisition of 30% in Hai Yue Real Estate

On 27 July 2015, Shenzhen Cheng He, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a conditional acquisition agreement
(the "Hai Yue Acquisition Agreement”) with the Independent
Third Party to acquire 30% equity interest of Hai Yue Real
Estate @B EHE for a consideration of RMB195,000,000.
It is anticipated the acquisition of Hai Yue Real Estate will be
completed in June 2016. For the details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2015.

Subscription of share in Wuhan Yi Da

On 31 July 2015, Shenzhen Cheng He, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a conditional share subscription
agreement with the Independent Third Party to subscribe
11,250,000 shares issued by Wuhan Yi Da at a consideration of
RMB50,000,000. For the details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 31 July 2015. In March 2016, all the equity
interest in and loan to Shenzhen Cheng He were disposed to the
Independent Third Party. Please refer to paragraph headed “Events
after the Reporting Period”.
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Termination of the acquisition of 70% interest in Shenzhen
Zhong De

On 3 August 2015, Shenzhen Shen He, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a termination agreement (the
“Termination Agreement”) to terminate the acquisition agreement
to acquire 70% of the issued share capital of Shenzhen Zhong
De. Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, the consideration
paid in the sum of RMB100,000,000 together with the liquidated
compensation of RMB2,000,000 shall be refunded to the Group.
At as the date of this report, the consideration paid and the
compensation in the sum of RMB102,000,000 has been received
by the Group. For the details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 3 August 2015.

Termination of the acquisition of Panyu Property

On 16 March 2015, Shenzhen Shen Shang, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the Independent Third Party in relation to
the acquisition of a total of 40 commercial properties units of
Panyu Wanda Plaza in Panyu, Guangzhou with a total area of
approximately 2,262.66 square meters (“Panyu Property”), at a
consideration of approximately RMB43,217,000.

On 3 August 2015, Shenzhen Shen Shang, entered into a
termination agreement (the “Panyu Termination Agreement”) to
terminate the acquisition of the Panyu Property. Pursuant to the
Panyu Termination Agreement, the deposit paid in the sum of
RMB22,000,000 shall be refunded to Shenzhen Shen Shang within
30 days from the date of the Panyu Termination Agreement. The
deposit paid of RMB22,000,000 has been received by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015. This transaction does
not constitute any notifiable transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Capital Contribution to Chung Hwa Finance

On 23 December 2015, Kingma Overseas, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the capital contribution
agreement with Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited, an
Independent Third Party, pursuant to which each of Kingma
Overseas and Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited agreed
to make capital contribution (the “Capital Contribution”) of
HK$109,990,000 and HK$90,000,000 respectively to Chung
Hwa Finance. Upon completion of the Capital Contribution,
the share capital of Chung Hwa Finance will be increased to
HK$200,000,000 and Chung Hwa Finance will be owned as to
55% and 45% by Kingma Overseas and Chung Hwa Finance
Holdings Limited respectively. The Capital Contribution has
been completed after the reporting period. Chung Hwa Finance
continue to be a subsidiary of the Company and included as a
subsidiary in the Group's consolidated financial statements. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 December
2015 for the details of the Capital Contribution.

During the 2015 Financial Year, save as disclosed above, there
was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associate
companies of the Company.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, EMOLUMENTS, TRAINING
SCHEMES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 47
(2014: 41) employees (including Directors of the Company). The
Group has entered into employment contracts with all employees,
and offered employment package according with their positions,
qualifications, experience and ability. During the 2015 Financial
Year, the aggregate salaries and emoluments amounted to
RMB3,672,000 (2014: RMB2,955,000). The Group also provide
benefits to employees, such as contributions to endowment
insurance, basic medical insurance and housing reserve in
accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC.

The Group has not adopted any share option scheme for any of its
senior management or employees.

ASSETS SECURED/PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2015, pursuant to the margin securities
accounts, the Group had pledged the equity listed securities in
Hong Kong and convertible bonds issued by the listed company
with the fair value of approximately RMB14,637,000 (2014: RMB
nil) and RMB48,883,000 (2014: RMB nil) respectively.
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CURRENCY RISKS

Other than those subsidiaries established in Hong Kong, the
revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on
transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional
and reporting currency of the Group which is Renminbi. The
change in the exchange rate of Hong Kong Dollar against
Renminbi will affect the result of the Group. The Group currently
does not have hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure
in future should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2014: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2015, the total capital commitments of the
Group amounted to RMB391,283,000 (2014: RMB294,214,000),
details of which were set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Memorandum of Understanding in relation to possible joint
venture arrangements

On 6 January 2016, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Joint
Venture Party”) and Hong Kong Multi-ldeas Chip Investment
Holdings Limited H#EZBEXEERIREBR A A (the
“Joint Venture Partner”) entered into the Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU"), pursuant to which the Joint Venture
Party and the Joint Venture Partner intend to establish a domestic
company (“Joint Venture Company”) in the PRC to market the
reconfigurable security processor. Pursuant to the MOU, should
the Joint Venture Party and the Joint Venture Partner fail to
execute a formal agreement within 60 days from the date of
the MOU, the MOU shall lapse. Since no formal agreement has
been entered into between the Joint Venture Party and the Joint
Venture Partner in respect of the Joint Venture Company on or
before 5 March 2016, the MOU has lapsed and ceased to take
effect. Please refer to announcement of the Company dated 7
January 2016 for further details.
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Acquisition of 30% equity interest of Shishi Shen Guo Tou

On 11 January 2016, after trading hours, Shenzhen Zhonghe,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
acquisition agreement (the “Lion City Acquisition Agreement”)
to acquire 30% equity interest of Shishi Shen Guo Tou A %%
B #% for a total consideration of RMB150,000,000. The Lion
City Acquisition shall be completed upon the fulfillment of the
conditions precedent within six months from the date of the Lion
City Acquisition Agreement. As at the date of this report, the
acquisition has not yet completed. Please refer to announcement
of the Company dated 12 January 2016 for further details.

Completion of the placing of H-Shares and the issuance of
Domestic Shares under the general mandate

On 11 February 2016, the Company completed the placing of
100,896,000 new H-Shares at the placing price of RMB1 per
H-Share.

On 23 February 2016, the Company completed the issuance of
144,000,000 Domestic Shares at RMB1 per Domestic Share.

For the details of the placing of H-Shares and the issuance of
Domestic Shares, please refer to the paragraph headed “Enlarging
Share Capital”.

Disposal of ARHL Shares and transfer of ARHL Convertible
Bonds

All the ARHL Shares and ARHL Convertible Bonds held by the
Group as at 31 December 2015 have been subsequently disposed
after the reporting date. For the details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Business Review — Securities Investments
Business”.
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Formation of Joint Venture in the PRC

On 4 February 2016, Shenzhen Tonghe, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Shenzhen Galaxy Real Estate Development
Company Limited* (“Shenzhen Galaxy Real Estate”) )&3I[T7 £ 8]
B E AR A 7] has jointly established a joint venture namely
Shenzhen Xingma Hongyun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd*
FYITE SR EREMEBMR AT in the PRC (the “PRC Joint
Venture”) with the registered capital of RMB10,000,000. The
PRC Joint Venture will engage in real estate development and
operation in the area with legally land use rights. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 18 February 2016 for
further details. As at the date of this report, the PRC Joint Venture
has not made any investments.

Transfer 30% interest in Hai Yue Real Estate

On 3 March 2016, Shenzhen Cheng He, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, assigned the Hai Yue Acquisition
Agreement to Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian Investment
Development Company Limited* FJIFAARRELRARE
f£72 7], a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The transfer
of the Hai Yue Acquisition Agreement within the Group did not
constitute a transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Acquisition of 28% equity interest in Shenzhen Hui Ye
Micro Lending Company Limited

On 10 March 2016, the Company entered into the acquisition
agreement with the Independent Third Party to acquire 28%
equity interest in Shenzhen Hui Ye Micro Lending Company
Limited* JRYITTEZ/NEEFBR AR for a consideration of
RMB42,000,000. Since the applicable percentage ratios of the
acquisition is less than 5%, the acquisition did not constitute a
disclosable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Disposal of the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Cheng He

On 15 March 2016, Shenzhen Shen He, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a disposal agreement to dispose
all the equity interest in and loan to Shenzhen Cheng He to the
Independent Third Party for a consideration of RMB44,000,000.
Since the applicable percentage ratios of the disposal is less than
5%, the disposal did not constitute a disclosable transaction under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group had no
significant investment held for the 2015 Financial Year.

ENLARGING SHARE CAPITAL

The Company is active pursing to enlarge its share capital so as to
enhance the financial foundation and capital base of the Group.
The Company has raised the share capital through the issue of
Domestic Shares and H-Shares as follow:

On 5 May 2015, the Company completed the placing of
84,080,000 H-Shares at the price of HK$1.25 (approximately
RMB1.00) per share under the General Mandate 2014 and
raised net proceeds of approximately HK$103.6 million. The net
proceeds were used for the development of credit business in
Hong Kong. Details of the placing of H-Shares are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 22 April and 5 May 2015.

On 9 June 2015, the Company completed the issuance
of 120,000,000 Domestic Shares at the price of RMB1.00
(approximately HK$1.25) per share under the General Mandate
2014 and raised net proceeds of approximately RMB119.5 million.
The net proceeds were used as to approximately RMB12,000,000
as the working capital for construction and infrastructure business
of Zhongfang Chaozhou; as to approximately RMB50,000,000 as
the investment in 4.35% equity interests of Wuhan Yi Da and as
to approximately RMB57,500,000 as the payment of consideration
for the acquisition of 30% equity interest of Hai Yue Real Estate.
Details of the issuance of 120,000,000 Domestic Shares are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 22 May and 9
June 2015.

On 11 February 2016, the Company completed the placing of
100,896,000 H-Shares at the price of HK$1.19 (approximately
RMB1.00) per share under the General Mandate 2015 and
raised net proceeds of approximately HK$117.64 million. The net
proceeds were used for credit business in Hong Kong and working
capital of the Group. Details of the placing of 100,896,000
H-Shares are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
19 January and 11 February 2016.
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On 23 February 2016, the Company completed the issuance
of 144,000,000 Domestic Shares at the price of RMB1.00
(approximately HK$1.196) per share under the General Mandate
2015 and raised the net proceed of approximately RMB143.2
million. The net proceeds were used for as to approximately
RMB130,000,000 for the acquisition of 30% equity interest of
Shishi Shen Guo Ton; as to approximately RMB13,000,000 for
the working capital for construction and infrastructure business
of Zhongfang Chaozhou and approximately RMB200,000 for
the working capital of the Group. Details of the issuance of
144,000,000 Domestic Shares are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 18 December 2015 and 25 February 2016.

Following the completion of the placing of H-Shares and issuance
of Domestic Shares as set out in above, the share capital of the
Company increased to RMB1,469,376,000 at the date of this
report comprising of 864,000,000 Domestic Shares of RMB1 each
and 605,376,000 H-Shares of RMB1 each.

PROPOSED CHANGES OF THE COMPANY NAME AND
REGISTERED ADDRESS

In May 2013, the Board proposed to change (i) the name of the
Company from &S A RERKRGHG AR AR Shenyang Public
Utility Holdings Company Limited” to "I & B %R R
B AR E] Shenzhen Jinma Development Holdings Company
Limited” and (ii) the existing registered address of the Company
to JRYITH 2R AE ST B 2 R EEEABRR242211 (211, 2nd Floor,
Block A and B, An Ye Xin Yuan, Yanfang Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,
the PRC) (the "Proposed Changes”). The relevant resolutions
have been approved by the Shareholders on 21 June 2013. The
proposed change of company name will take effect after all
relevant approval, authorities, licenses and consents have been
obtained from the relevant governmental authorities, and all filings
and registration procedures in the PRC have been completed.
The proposed change of the registered address of the Company
is subject to the completion of the registration procedures with
Shenyang Administration for Industry and Commerce (&[5 T
PE{TEE I fH) and the completion of the relevant procedures for
the change of registration with Market Supervision Administration
of Shenzhen Municipality (FYITTHIHEEEE ). Details of
which is set out in the circular of the Company dated 28 May
2013.

It has encountered unexpected undue prolonged procedures with
the relevant government departments to complete the Proposed
Changes. In view of the uncertainty to complete the Proposed
Changes, the Board resolved to seek the approval from the
Shareholders at the coming general meeting of Shareholders to
cancel the Proposed Changes.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 59, graduated from Shantou Business
School. Since 1986, Mr. Zhang has successively worked as the
deputy manager of Guangdong Haining Paper Packing Company
Limited* (BERBEHMEEEGRAF]), the vice president of
Hong Kong Hai Yuan Industry Group Limited and chairman of
Beijing Zhongjin Chuangzhan Real Estate Development Company
Limited* Jt R EIREMEMEHFRAF). Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in business management, corporate culture
and project and operational planning.

Mr. Huang Zhen Kun, aged 57, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang was re-designated from non-executive
director to executive director of the Company with effect from 3
March 2014. He joined the Group since June 2013. Mr. Huang
graduated from Shenzhen University (ZYIIKE) majoring in
accounting. He is currently the general manager of Zhongfang
Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited (7 5 &)1
FEFEERAR]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Huang has extensive experience in corporate governance and

management of real estate projects.

Mr. Deng Xiao Gang, aged 56, is an executive director of the
Company. He joined the Group since June 2013. Mr. Deng
graduated from the Urban Construction and Engineering
Department of Chongqing Institute of Architectural and
Engineering (EEEZE TZET) in 1983 with a bachelor degree
in engineering, majoring in water supply and drainage. Mr.
Deng has extensive experience in corporate governance and
management of real estate projects.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Yin Zong Chen, aged 52, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yin joined the Group since March 2014. Mr. Yin
graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology (M /& T2 K
&) with a master degree in Architecture and Civil Engineering
Professional. Mr. Yin has also achieved the qualification as a
national registered constructor and registered supervision engineer.
From 2009 to 2011, Mr. Yin has successively held positions as the
deputy general manager and responsible officer of the contracting
division in Shenzhen Construction (Group) Company Limited (Z3I|
MR (EE) AR A R]). Mr. Yin is currently served as the deputy
president of Shenzhen City Construction Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Yin
has over 20 years' experience in architecture, civil engineering and
infrastructure construction.

Ms. Li Yu Xiang, aged 57, graduated from Henan Radio &
Television University* (i EEERAKEEEZEE) with a
bachelor’s degree in laws in 1988. Since 1981, Ms. Li has served
as the section officer of Bureau of Justice in Kaifeng City, Henan
Province, and the chief lawyer of Henan Rnn He law firm* (i
A EEMETEFT). Ms. Liis currently the partner of Guangdong
Shen Hua law firm* (B FEEREIS5AT). Ms. Li has extensive
experience in finance and capital markets, debts and liabilities,
intellectual property rights.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 44. Mr. Chan graduated
from the University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor
of Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer Information
Systems. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of Certified Public Accountants,
Australia and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
investment and financial management. Between September
2001 and December 2015, Mr Chan was an associate director of
Go-To-Asia Investment Limited. Between July 2000 and August
2001, Mr. Chan was an investment manager with Softbank China
Venture Investments Limited. Between April 1995 and June 2000,
he worked at Ernst & Young in Hong Kong and his last position
was a senior associate with the audit and corporate finance
department.

Mr. Chan is currently (i) an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited; (i) an independent non-executive director
of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited) (Stock
code: 871); Far East Holdings International Limited (Stock code:
36) and Hao Tian Development Group Limited (Stock code: 474),
whose respective securities are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, and (iii) an independent non-executive director
of Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8016) and
L&A International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8195), whose
respective securities are listed on the growth enterprise market of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of the
Company since 12 February 2009 and has resigned on 21 June
2013. Furthermore, Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive
director of Beautiful China Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
706) between March 2013 and February 2014 and Focus Media
Network Limited (stock: 8112) between April to November 2015
respectively.

Mr. Yu Guan Jian, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since June 2013. Mr. Yu graduated
from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (7G5 81
4 KE) with a master degree in economics in 1988. Mr. Yu has
extensive experience in corporate risk management and asset
management. From August 2012 to November 2015, Mr. Yu
has been the independent director of Sichuan Tianyi Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. (FJIIR—RIEHH BRAR]), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 600378). Mr.
Yu is currently the supervisor of China Orient Asset Management
Corporation.
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Mr. He Qing Jia, aged 33. Mr. He was graduated from the
University of Electronic Science and Technology with a master
degree in Measurement Technology and Instruments. Since 2011,
Mr. He has worked as the business development manager of
Huawei Technologies Company Limited (Z &+ iTA R A 7)) and
the assistant to the general manager of Shenzhen Tong Heng
Micro Technology Company Limited (3117 [F = (R A R A 7).
Mr. He has extensive experience in corporate management and
managing external relations.

SUPERVISORS:

Mr. Wang Xing Ye, aged 40, is a supervisor of the Company
since February 2009. Mr. Wang graduated from the Xian
University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in economics
in 1999 and graduated from Peking University of School of
Government with a profession of political science and public
administration in 2009. Mr. Wang was conferred a master’s
degree in software engineering by the Northeastern University in
January 2013. Mr. Wang is currently the manager of the Division
of Listing Rules Compliance in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Tech Company Limited and the Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company. He has profound experience in
investment and financing, asset and business reorganization.

Mr. He Song Xi, aged 62. Mr. He was graduated from
Guangdong Puning Jianxin Secondary School (R & EmHEH+
&) with a high-school education level. He was a member of the
second Youth Federation of Puning City. Since 2004 to 2014, Mr.
He has successively held positions as the deputy general manager
of Shenzhen An Ye Real Estate Group Company Limited (Z&3l]
M EMESBBRAR]) and the deputy general manager of
Shenzhen Si Ji Wan Jia Department Store Company Limited (&
NFHEERAEERAT). Mr. He is currently served as the
deputy general manager of Shenzhen Xing Fu Hotel Management
Company Limited* @Y= EEEIR AR L T). Mr. He has
extensive experience in corporate management and business
culture.

Ms. Huang Yong Jing, aged 38. Ms. Huang was graduated from
Zhangzhou University with a bachelor degree in food engineering.
Since 2002, Ms. Huang has successively worked as the food
inspector in Xiamen Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau
(BT HE B REHZR), executive manager and deputy
general assistant of Shenzhen Pico Investment and Development
Company Limited ORIITTERKEZER AR A T]) and the
executive assistant of Shenzhen Anye Property Holdings Limited
CRINT Z ¥ ERRER A F). Ms. Huang is currently worked
in the integrated management department of the Company. Ms.
Huang is experienced in business administration and managing
external relations and affairs.
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Mr. Zhang Yun Feng, aged 53. Mr. Zhang was graduated
from Anhui University of Finance and Economics (ZHIETAE K
E2) majoring in commodity science. Mr. Zhang has worked as
deputy general manager of the marketing department in the
headquarters of the Kunlun Securities Company Limited (£ @&
#£BR/AE]), marketing director of Shenzhen sale branch of the
Hong Yuan Securities Company Limited (ZJRBH RN BR A
7]) and the general manager of Anhui Xin Tai Yuan Technology
Company Limited (Z#ZF TR AR A A]). He is currently the
president of Shenzhen Qian Yuan Kun Li Investment Technology
Co., Ltd.(RIITAEz T AR E R AR A F). Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in capital management.

Mr. Fang Wei Ran, aged 31, graduated from Guangdong Ocean
University with Bachelor of Science in Financial Management. He
previously worked in Huizhou LCY Rubber Company. Mr. Fang
is currently the internal accountant of Zhongfang Chaozhou
Investment Development Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Fang has extensive experience in
accounting practices and cost management.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES:

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung, aged 59, is the Joint Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. Wu is a director of a professional firm
processing corporate secretarial and advisory services. Mr. Wu
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Wu was appointed as the Company Secretary in
May 2013.

Ms. Qian Fang Fang, aged 32, is a medium-level accountant and
the Joint Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Qian graduated
from the Northwest University of professional accounting with a
bachelor’s degree in management in 2006, and was conferred a
master’s degree in management in 2008. Ms. Qian was appointed
as the supervisor of the Company for the period from 12 February
2012 to 3 March 2014. Ms. Qian was appointed as Joint Company
Secretary on 6 March 2014.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EEeaHd

To the Shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the supervisory
committee of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(the “Supervisory Committee”), exercised conscientiously its
authority, safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders and the
Company, followed the principle of trustworthiness, honestly
carried out the duties of supervisors and worked cautiously and
diligently, in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of Hong
Kong and the Articles of Association of the Company for their
accountability to the Shareholders.

During the year, the major work performed by the Supervisory
Committee included the attendance of the Board meetings;
reviewing the report of the Directors and reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board, if any, for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting; strictly and effectively
monitoring whether the policies and decisions made by the
management of the Company had conformed with the state laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company
or safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders. The Supervisory
Committee has also reviewed the performance of the Directors,
general manager and senior management in the daily operation
by various means, and seriously examined the Company’s financial
affairs and its connected transactions. After the examination, the
Supervisory Committee concluded that:

1. the report of the Directors and the reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting are in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association of the Company;

2. the Directors, general manager and other senior
management of the Company have strictly followed
the principles of trustworthiness, worked diligently and
responsibly, and discharged their duties for the best
interest of the Company. The Supervisory Committee has
not discovered that any Directors, general manager and
other senior management of the Company had abused
their powers, damaged the interest of the Company or the
benefits of the shareholders and employees or contravened
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of
the Company;
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3. the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015, which were audited
by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited, have truly and
fairly reflected the operating results and financial position
of the Group. The related parties transactions were fair
and reasonable and had not infringed upon the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee takes this opportunity to thank the

Shareholders, Directors and all the employees of the Company for
their supports in the past year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Mr. Wang Xing Ye
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenyang, 29 March 2016
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. Securities investments is a
new principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2015.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 45.

The state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2015 is set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 46
and 47.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements and consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2015, calculated under the Company Law of the PRC,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was established,
(2014: RMB Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company and under the laws of the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the financial information of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 159 and 160.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or
agreed to be granted by the Company to any of its Directors,
Supervisors or employees.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Zhong Hong (resigned on 24 June 2015)
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (appointed on 24 June 2015)
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang

Mr. Huang Zhen Kun

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yin Zong Chen

Ms. Li Yu Xiang (appointed on 24 June 2015)
Ms. Zhang Lei Lei (retired on 24 June 2015)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Guan Jian

Mr. Wei Jie Sheng (retired on 12 February 2015)

Mr. Wong Kai Tat (retired on 12 February 2015)

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (appointed on 12 February 2015)
Mr. He Qing Jia (appointed on 12 February 2015)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent to the Group in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, all the Directors shall be appointed at the general
meeting for a term of three years. A director may serve
consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiration of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on pages from 18 to 22.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/
her date of appointment as a Director or Supervisor (or until the
expiration of the term of the current session of the Board or
Supervisory Committee) and thereafter subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice to the
other party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ service contracts disclosed above, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES” AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, none of the directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions in
any securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors and
Supervisors as referred to in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2015, save as the Company’s Directors,
supervisors and chief executives, the following corporations and
individuals had interests and/or short positions in the Company’s
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures, which are required to be recorded in the register of
members maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:
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Percentage of total

Interest owners Shares issued share capital

EERTRFEN

REBAA B&in BSL

1 Shenzhen Jinma Asset Management Company 600,000,000 domestic shares 49.00%
Limited ("Jinma Asset”) 600,000,000/% R & i%

M eEAEERERAR (2 HAE))

2 Ma Zhong Hong (nhote 1) 600,000,000 domestic shares 49.00%
SER(HE1) 600,000,0008% A& %

3 Lin Wei Cheng (note 2) 600,000,000 domestic shares 49.00%
MERK(H7E2) 600,000,0008% W& %

4 HKSCC Nominees Limited (note 3) 503,035,690 H shares (listed shares) 41.08%

ERRREE(REN)BRAB(H723)
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Notes:

1. Ma Zhong Hong is a PRC legal person who holds 90% equity interests
in Jinma Asset. Pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO, Ma Zhong Hong is
also deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of the Company
held by Shenzhen Jinma.

2. Lin Wei Cheng is a PRC legal person who holds 10% equity interests in
Jinma Asset. Pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO, Lin Wei Cheng is also
deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of the Company held
by Jinma Asset.

3. As notified by HKSCC Nominees Limited, as of 31 December 2015, the
following participants of CCASS had interests amounting to 5.00%
or more of the total issued H shares of the Company as shown in the
securities accounts in CCASS:

(1) The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as
nominee holds 63,091,740 H shares, representing 12.50% of
the issued H shares of the Company.

2) Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee holds
56,510,000 H shares, representing 11.2% of the issued H
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company
has not been notified of any interests and/or short positions in
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures of the Company which are required to be recorded
in the register maintained in accordance with section 336 of the
SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable to
the Group's major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 95%
— five largest customers combined 100%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 98%
— five largest suppliers combined 100%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers disclosed above.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors and Supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2015.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had certain related
party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, which are not subject to the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of review of the Group’s business is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 7 to 17
of this annual report.

Risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group has been
addressed in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 of this
annual report and the “Management Discussion and Analysis”

section in this annual report.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Likely development in the Group’s business

The likely development of the Group is shown in the business
prospect section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report.

An analysis using financial key performance indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to
the business of the Group are set out in the “Financial Review"
section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Environmental policies and performance

Environment protection is critical to the long term development
of the Group. The Group places importance in the management
practice so as to minimize waste, maximize efficiencies and reduce
negative impact to the environment.

Relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
others

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment polices on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of requirements of customers and
complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the new enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of the
Group.
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AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES

In May 2015 and June 2015, the Company proposed to make
certain amendments to the Articles upon completion of issuance
of additional H shares and domestic shares during the year to
align the share capital of the Company in the Articles with the
actual situation. Details of which are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 11 June 2015. The proposed amendments have
been approved by the Shareholders on 24 June 2015.

As at the date of this report, registration procedures with
Shenyang Administration for Industry and Commerce (&5 L
E1TIE IR /) have been completed and the amendments to the
Articles have come into effect.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, nor has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events after the reporting period and up to

the date of this report are set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statement.
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AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

Shenyang, The PRC, 29 March 2016
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The Board is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics which are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time to comply with the regulatory
requirements, and to improve the in corporate governance
practice.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules where
applicable to the Company. Up to the date of this annual report,
in the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board of Directors, which currently comprises 8 Directors, is
responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy, and risk
management to protect shareholders interest. Daily operation
and administration delegated by the Board of Directors to the
Executive Directors and the management.

The brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of
this report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group. The composition of the Board is well
balanced as all directors have experience in their field of expertise
with a balance of skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the
operation of the Group.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualifications. In
addition, two non-executive Director are appointed to provide
guidance to the Board.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independence of the management.

The terms of appointment for all the executive Directors,
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are 3 years. All Directors shall be elected and removed by the
shareholders in general meeting according to the Articles of the
Company.
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The policy relating to the Board diversity of the Group sets
up the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to
ensure the Board has the required skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and other qualities of the members of the Board. The
composition of the Board and its committee is regularly reviewed
by considering the benefits of all aspects of diversity. The Board
Diversity Policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors are provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Group’s businesses and their statutory
supervision responsibilities as directors of listed companies.
The Company will update directors on the latest development
regarding the Group’s businesses as well as the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, where appropriate. In
addition, all directors are encouraged to participate in training
programmes held by qualified professional people in relation to
the revised code and amendments to the relevant listing rules, so as
to develop and update their knowledge and skills.

During the 2015 Financial Year, all the directors have participated
in proper continuous professional development trainings to update
their knowledge and skills by attending briefings, conferences,
programmes, workshops and seminars as well as by way of further
education and self-study, so as to understand their roles, functions
and responsibilities.

Attendance of individual Director at Board meetings for 2015
Financial Year are as follows:
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Number of meeting BERE 23
Executive Directors: HiTEF -
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (appointed on 24 June 2015)  SRARBASEA (7201556 A24 A EE(E) 12
Mr. Ma Zhong Hong (resigned on 24 June 2015) g 44 (FA2015F6 24 B BHT) M
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang BRBEAR ST A 22
Mr. Huang Zhen Kun EEEAT A 23
Non-executive Directors: FENTTESE -
Ms. Zhang Lei Lei (resigned on 24 June 2015) REE LT (A201596 A24B EHT) "
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRESE 23
Ms. Li Yu Xiang (appointed on 24 June 2015) EEBHLLT(FR2015F6 A24AEER(T) 12
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIFHTEE -
Mr. Yu Guan Jian REAR LS 23
Mr. Wei Jie Sheng (retired on 12 February 2015) EZ A4 (201552 A 12 B:EF) 1
Mr. Wong Kai Tat (retired on 12 February 2015) FRUESRE (FA2015%2 12 B:EF) 1
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PREGEL ST 22
(appointed on 12 February 2015) (201592 A 12 BEET)
Mr. He Qing Jia (appointed on 12 February 2015) AR ER A (201562 A 12 B EERT) 21
20155 BHEARREROGERAEF 35
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All Directors have access to the advice and assistance of the Joint
Company Secretaries in relation to the Board procedures and
corporate governance matters.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded all the matters
discussed by the Board and the matters resolved. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries and are
available for inspection by any Director or Committee Members.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and not exercised by the same
individual. The Chairman is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming and the Chief
Executive Office is Mr. Deng Xiao Gang.

With the support of the Joint Company Secretaries, the Chairman
ensures all the Directors are provided adequate information on
matters discussed in the Board Meeting in a timely manner.

REMUNERATION OF COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 12 February
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The majority of committee members are independent non-
executive Directors and the committee chairman is Mr. He Qing
Jia. Other committee members are Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
and Ms. Li Yu Xiang.

The roles of the remuneration committee include the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension benefits
and compensation payments (including any compensation payable
for loss of office or engagement), and make recommendations to
the Board about the remuneration of the non-executive Directors.

Details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
meetings are as follows:

Number of meetings
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Mr. Wei Jei Sheng (retired on 12 February 2015)
Mr. Wong Kai Tat (retired on 12 February 2015)
Mr. He Qing Jia (appointed on 12 February 2015)
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

(appointed on 12 February 2015)
Ms. Zhang Lei Lei (retired on 24 June 2015)
Ms. Li Yu Xiang (appointed on 24 June 2015)

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered

and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors.
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The remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the nomination committee on 12
February 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. The majority of committee members are
independent non-executive Directors and the committee chairman
is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, the other members include Mr. He Qing
Jia and Mr. Yu Guan lJian.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations on any proposed change to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategies.
Furthermore, the committee will make recommendations to the
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Board on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment HofE o

of directors and succession planning for directors, subject to the

final approval in the general meeting.

Details of the attendance of the nomination committee meetings REETEee@ENZEERaEn T -

are as follow:

Number of meetings EERE 2

Mr. Ma Zhong Hong (retired on 24 June 2015)
Mr. He Qing Jia (appointed on 12 February 2015)
Mr. Yu Guan Jian

Mr. Wei Jei Sheng (retired on 12 February 2015)
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (appointed on 24 June 2015)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties
of the audit committee are to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal controls system of the Group.
The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. The chairman of the
audit committee is Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan. The audit
committee held four meetings during the 2015 Financial Year.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follow:

BEZZEGERNTHRLENT

Number of meetings BERE 4
Mr. Wong Kai Tat (retired on 12 February 2015) TRRER A (20152 A 12BEE) 0
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE 4
Mr. Yu Guan Jian REARE L 4
Mr. Chan Ming San Jonathan PR$ELE S 4

(appointed on 12 February 2015)

The Group's unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2015 and audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been reviewed by the audit committee,
in relation to the compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors without the
presence of executive Directors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor. During
the year, the Company paid an aggregate of approximately
RMB864,000 to the external auditor for their auditing services of
RMB777,000 and non-audit services of RMB87,000 respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code for the 2015 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statement showing a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibility to the shareholders on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with the supports of finance
department of the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has applied the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and consistently followed the appropriate accounting
policies and provisions of laws.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system within the Group. The Group’s
system of internal control includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help the
Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in
the achievement of the Group's business objectives.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's internal control
system and discussed the issues with the Auditor. Issue raised for
improvement had been identified and appropriate actions were
recommended.

To strengthen the internal control, the Group has engaged
PRO-WIS Risk Advisory Services Limited to provide internal audit
function to review internal control and risk management system
of the Group in 2016.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for overall corporate strategy and
monitoring and control of the performance of the Group whereas
the management is responsible for the daily hands on operation.

When the Board delegates its management and administrative
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as to
the powers of the management and the circumstances where,
the management on behalf of the Company shall obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung, engaged from external service provider,
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company in
May 2013. Following the appointment of Ms. Qian Fang Fang
as the Joint Company Secretaries in March 2014, Mr. Wu and
Ms Qian are the Joint Company Secretaries of the Company. Mr.
Zhang Jing Ming, the executive director, is the primary contact
for external company secretary. Each of Mr. Wu and Ms. Qian
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the 2015 Financial Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
for investors to understand the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.747kingma.com,
to provide up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, and
corporate governance practices.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
its shareholders, in particular, through AGMs or other general
meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board as well as the
Chairmen of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee will make themselves available at the
AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board, the chairman or the representatives of
each committee together with the external auditor have attended
the annual general meeting to answer any questions raised by the
shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held in June 2016.
The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders in due course.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on the Group's business in a timely manner, subject
to relevant regulatory requirement.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate 10 per cent or
more of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting may,
in accordance with the requirements set out in the Articles of
Association of the Company, make a requisition to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
stating the objective of the meeting. The Board shall as soon as
possible proceed to convene the extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting after receiving the requisition.

SHAREHOLDERS ENQUIRIES

Any enquiries regarding the shareholding of H-Shares, including
the transfer of shares, change of address, loss of certificate etc,
should be sent to the Company’s H-Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Hong Kong Registrar Limited at Rooms 1712-16, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Any enquires relating to the Company should be sent to the
Company’s registered office for the attention of the Chairman of
the Board.

CONSTITUTION DOCUMENTS

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Company has proposed to
make certain amendments to the Articles. Details of the proposed
changes are set out in the section headed ‘Amendments to the
Articles’ of the Report of Directors.

Updated version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company is published on the website of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
EERAARRBROABRAE

(incorporated in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 44 to 158, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: P05256
Suites 313-316, 3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

S A 42 3£
REBRER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

Turnover

Revenue

Sales taxes on turnover

Cost of sales

Other income

Fair value change on convertible
instruments designated as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value change on held-for-trading
investments

Loss on disposal of held-for-trading
investments

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities

LN

BERBHEN

BEMA

HApg A
EEMEAAEEFAR
o F) B 75 B RO R R
TEAMAAEBEEY
FEEERERAR
BEEY
HERHEEBEREEE

HEDERFHEHEERE

classified as held for sale B RWER
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — M B A Bk
Exchange gain, net b 5 W s F R
Depreciation e
Staff costs B I
Other operating expenses Hib g Em=
Finance costs B TSR AR
Profit before tax ST
Income tax expense RS2
(Loss) profit for the year FR(HR)ET
(Loss) earnings per share BiR(GR) 2%
— Basic (RMB cents) —ERNARESD)
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#HEARED)
Dividends &R
44 Annual Report 2015

19

30

10

11

12

15

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TT AREFIT
342,523 86,248
311,400 86,248
(765) (431)
(293,945) (80,932)
2,077 2,042
1,084 =
(7,917) =
(9,377) (561)

- 45,677

- 3

11,578 =
(172) (83)
(3,672) (2,955)
(6,036) (3,792)
(531) =
3,724 45,216
(6,497) (1,155)
(2,773) 44,061
(0.24) 4.32
EH i A

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RERBEREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

(Loss) profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive
income, net of income tax
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements of
foreign operations

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

FAFIHBAERSFER
(548 a%
Hth2EUMA -
HIERFRS1R
B8 LI A=F s =Y~y
ZIEH -

BEBINRBMGREESE
ZESHZER

FAFHAAELFER
2E (X)W

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARETIT
(2,773) 44,061

316 180
(2,457) 44,241
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2015
M2015F12A31H

Notes
Kzt

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Available-for-sale investments

Loan and interest receivables —
non-current portion

Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development

Deferred tax asset

Held-for-trading investments

Loan and interest receivables
— current portion

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Other borrowings
Advanced proceeds received from
a customer
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Tax liabilities

JERBEE
b E N
GES
TBERE A EBEFA
BRI EEERN
ATpR T A
AL ERE
FERE R FE
— JEBNEAZE 5>
U b — B BT B A B P
T EETE
U BE — R & A RIFT
T EETE

RENEE
BRTYME
ERRIREE
RIERERE
PR E R R FE
— BIEAER
FEUAR R
BNR  ZeR
HAb R
RITHEBERE

mEAR

FE A BRAR

H b e % fE T &
HitEE
El—BEP
TBNRIA

JE& S B AR X B RIR
MIRAE

NET CURRENT ASSETS R EERE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERTDHAR
LIABILITIES
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16
17

19

18

20

21

22

23
35
24

20
25

27
29

31

33

32
41

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
1,231 1,372
45,779 45,779
48,883 =
62,750 =
- 58

- 80,000
175,000 =
333,643 127,209
199,398 461,136
1,354 2,112
14,637 —
174,557 40,614
186,701 28,200
900 102,330
12,156 7,881
589,703 642,273
107,768 131,162
4,710 5,458
15,333 =
- 37,200

- 2,000

6,813 5,731
134,624 181,551
455,079 460,722
788,722 587,931

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BB R X

At 31 December 2015
M2015F12A31H

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®FT ARBTT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERERE

Share capital &N 34 1,224,480 1,020,400
Reserves i (435,758) (432,469)
TOTAL EQUITY wigs 788,722 587,931

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 51 were FABEESTHYNGARESRE  KES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 SR2016E3 H29AZER I - WHh

March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: THESERREE
Zhang Jing Ming Deng Xiao Gang
RE BB
Director Director
EF EZE

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT 47



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

Statutory
Share Share surplus Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
EER
B BERE LN ERRRE RiBR &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
(Note 34) (Note a) (Note b)
(His#34) (Hizta) (Hrztb)
At 1 January 2014 R201451R18 1,020,400 323,258 104,745 (52) (904,661) 543,690
Profit for the year ERRA = - - - 44,061 44,061
Other comprehensive income, Ath2EE -

net of income tax ARAEH
Items that may be reclassified subsequently H/&R[REFHIES

to profit or loss: BaCEE
Exchange difference arising on translation A G5 £7%

of financial statements of foreign HBRREE

operations JERER - - - 180 - 180
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EMEEHR = = = 180 44,061 44,41
Transfer B - - 95 - (95) -
At 31 December 2014 and 120145128318 &

1 January 2015 20151 A1H 1,020,400 323,258 104,840 128 (860,695) 587,931
Loss for the year ERER - - - - 2,773 2,773
Other comprehensive income, Ath2EYE -

net of income tax HRAEH
Items that may be reclassified subsequently Hi4 A EHHEE

to profit or loss: B HER
Exchange difference arising on translation &G/ &7

of financial statements of foreign HBRREE

operations ERESR - - - 316 = 316
Total comprehensive income (expense) for ~ ER2EHZ ()

the year ek - - - 316 2,773) (2,457)
Domestic shares issued BETNER 120,000 - - - - 120,000
H-shares issued BETHER 84,080 = = = 84,080
Transaction costs attributable to issuance  B{THTRIERAR 5

of H-shares AR - (832) - - - (832)
At 31 December 2015 1#2015%12A31H 1,224,480 322,426 104,840 444 (863,468) 788,722
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERZSHR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

Notes:
(a) Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the value of net assets
acquired and the nominal value of state shares issued as a result of the
incorporation of the Company as a joint stock limited company and
the share premium from the issuance of H-shares.

(b) Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required to set aside 10% of its profit after taxation
prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting regulations to
the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
their respective paid up capital or registered capital, where further
appropriation will at the directors’ recommendation. Such reserve can
be used to reduce any losses incurred or increased the capital.

(c) Distributable reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, distributable reserve shall
be the lower of the accumulated distributable profits determined in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations as stated
in the PRC statutory audited financial statements and the accumulated
distributable profits determined in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Excluded Zhongfang
Chaozhou Investment Development Limited (“Zhongfang Chaozhou”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the Group did not have
any reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

Bt

(a)

(b)

(c)

B& iR

AR E B EK RN FEEBENARRIER
BAn S B R AR KM ETTHOEEREEZ H
BVEER - AR BITHIRFTE £ R RARE -

EEEBBARS

REFESHESR  AEEREURBEN
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BeEIRESBEMRBAKZEMERD
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S EZ #E
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FE SR RIRFIETE 2 S5 BEEA T
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BERBEARAR(THRERMDIN  ZEER
20154 % 2014F12 A31 B E Al DB 2
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Bank interest income

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and interest receivables

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities
classified as held for sale

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Compensation income arising from termination

of Proposed Acquisition (as defined in Note 21)

Compensation income arising from termination
of Property Acquisition (as defined in Note 28)

Fair value change on convertible instruments
designed as financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value change on held-for-trading investments

Loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease in properties under development
Increase in loan and interest receivables
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Decrease in trade payables
Decrease in other payables and accruals
Increase in held-for-trading investments
Decrease in advanced proceeds received from

EERE
BRE A 7

HE

AIBRA

SRITFIBHA

0E - WERRETE

PREWER R S HEER
BIEEE

HEDEARELENEER
BEMYRE

HE—FRME D AR

R BB EE(EERME21)
MELRRERA

R It ENEEIR (E & RHTE28)
MEERMRERA

IRE R OA BE ABZN
HHEEN AR T AR

FERERANABEED

HERERERREER

EERRUDMMEERQNE

ZERPMERD
PR BN B 32 00
PR (42 00) R
BNRE ke Rk

£ (MR D
A

E e oR R R B AR
REEERERN
ER—BEFPBRNFERND

a customer
Cash used in operations EEERBHRS
Income tax paid BT FTEHR
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES XHEERBNRLPE
50 Annual Report 2015

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT ARETT
3,724 45,216
531 =
(75) (28)
172 83
9 8
- (45,677)
- 3)
(2,000) =
- (200)
(1,084) =
7,917 =
9,377 561
18,571 (40)
261,758 56,114
(133,894) (40,567)
(158,501) 84,600
32,430 13,854
(23,394) (75,677)
(748) (1,270)
(31,253) =
(37,200) (73,800)
(72,231) (36,786)
(4,657) (7,434)
(76,888) (44,220

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received

Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary
Refund of deposit paid for Proposed Acquisition

(as defined in Note 21)

Compensation income arising from termination of

Proposed Acquisition (as defined in Note 21)
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate
Deposit paid for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

Refund for deposit paid for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

Compensation income arising from termination of
Property Acquisition (as defined in Note 28)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of held-for-trading investments

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Purchase of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading

investments

Net cash outflow from acquisition of a subsidiary
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary
Net cash inflow from disposal of assets and

liabilities classified as held for sales

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest expense

Proceeds from issue of domestic shares
Proceeds from issue of H-shares

Transaction costs attributable to issuance of

H-shares
(Decrease) increase in amount

due to ultimate holding company
Increase in other borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing other borrowings

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by bank

balances and cash
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HBITRERASRAR

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
75 28
(20,000) (80,000)
100,000 =
2,000 =
(175,000) =
- (37,500)
- 100,000
- 200
(51) (1,309)
- (67)
(62,750) =
(45,707) =
- 2,052
- (1,407)
- 3
69,000 29,845
(132,433) 11,845
(531) =
120,000 =
84,080 =
(832) =
(2,000) 2,000
15,333 =
- (8,991)
216,050 (6,991)
6,729 (39,366)
7,881 47,067
(2,454) 180
12,156 7,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

1.

52

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a joint stock limited company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
Company’s ultimate holding company is Shenzhen Jinma
Asset Management Company Limited (“Jinma Asset”), a
private limited liability company incorporated in the PRC.

The addresses of the principal place of business and
registered office of the Company are 14/F., Jinmao
International Apartment, No. 1 Xiao Dong Road, Da
Dong District, Shenyang, the PRC and No. 1-4, 20A,
Central Street, Shenyang Economic and Technological
Development Zone, the PRC, respectively.

The address of the principle place of business in Hong
Kong is Unit C, 21/F Eton Building, 288 Des Voeux Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.
Securities investments is a new principal activities of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“"RMB"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD"), the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
"Group”) are RMB.

The Company’s H-shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1

20155

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time in the current year:

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 19

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 27

Annual Improvements
Project

Financial Instruments’
Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

20155

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements
by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. H¥BEGREETHEEMER
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") SRR ([ FEMBERELER ) (Z)
(Continued)
2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 22 CHEGESRENBHTEGR
effective (Continued) BEITHEEHUEEREER
(%)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) ERBHBHELEREIF LM
THRE)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

BN BHRESENEORME
ZERPAT

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held-for-trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

20155

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

- With regard to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

- In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

- The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risks management activities have
also been introduced.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.

2. BFRNANRESITHERMER
SEN(FRMBEEEN ) (E)

2.2

€ 7 i {8 3 5k A ¥ R B
HEITWERMBEREER
(&)

EFEYMBHEEREINR L
TR(E)

- HRIREEFARE
RE=RBEhEtRE
R o A - FRES
AREREYHPEE
ENERXHREEX
R - BRIEBME
BRE/EFIANT
EHERIA K & B 1EY
e RIEN IS BIA
B e D8R - it
S - BRI R Al iR
AT I AT AR R | R B
AR - SRR B A
EITBPNZ - FRE
BLESEIPN:pik$ 2]
ERAREELIHNR

;'_Eo

ARBEE(EEES - &
IR B R 1R R B
A AU AR BB S EER
BIBAERR SEEREA
Y8 EMARENIEEE
REBAE EEHENEY
SERUAT - RS E BRI
B RAIT o

Annual Report 2015  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

20155

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations

in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2
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New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance
on how to account for the acquisition of a joint
operation that constitutes a business as defined in
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations. Specifically, the
amendments state that the relevant principles on
accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3
and other standards (e.g. HKAS 12 Income Taxes
regarding the recognition of deferred taxes at the
time of acquisition and HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash-
generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition
of a joint operation has been allocated) should be
applied. The same requirements should be applied
to the formation of a joint operation if and only
if an existing business is contributed to the joint
operation by one of the parties that participate in
the joint operation.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

20155

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
(Continued)

A joint operator is also required to disclose the
relevant information required by HKFRS 3 and other
standards for business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The Directors do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 11 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements give some guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The Directors do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 1 will
have a material impact on the amounts recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment prohibit entities from using a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS
38 Intangible Assets introduce a rebuttable
presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This
presumption can only rebutted in the following two
limited circumstances:

(a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue
and consumption of the economic benefits
of the intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Currently, the Group uses the straight-line method
for depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The Directors believe that the straight-
line method is the most appropriate method to
reflect the consumption of economic benefits
inherent in the respective assets and accordingly,
the Directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
38 will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

20155

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures deal with situation
where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in
a transaction with an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become
an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method) to fair value are
recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.

The amendments should be applied prospectively
to transactions occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The Directors
do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

64

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies
an asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to
held for distribution to owners (or vice versa). The
amendments clarify that such a change should be
considered as continuation of the original plan of
disposal and hence requirements set out in HKFRS
5 regarding the change of sale plan do not apply.
The amendments also clarify the guidance for when
held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is
continuing involvement in a transferred asset for
the purpose of the disclosures required in relation
to transferred assets.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the
rate used to discount post-employment benefit
obligations should be determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corporate bonds. The assessment of
the depth of a market for high qualify corporate
bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the
same currency as the benefits are to be paid). For
currencies for which there is no deep market in
such high quality corporate bonds, the market
yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds denominated in that currency
should be used instead.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application

of these amendments will have a material effect on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2

20155

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities and HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures clarify that the
exemption from preparing consolidated financial
statements is available to a parent entity that is
a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the
investment entity measures all its subsidiaries
at fair value in accordance with HKFRS 10. The
amendments also clarify that the requirement for
an investment entity to consolidate a subsidiary,
whose main purpose is to provide services and
activities that are related to the investment
activities of the investment entity parent, applies
only to subsidiaries that are not investment entities
themselves.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the
Group is not an investment entity and does not
have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture that
qualifies as an investment entity.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

RAWRGREETHERMGE
SEU(FRMBEEEN ) (E)

(Continued)
2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 22 CHREHGEEKRENHHBERR
effective (Continued) BETHEEMEREER
(&
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in FEREERE27% (ETX)
Separate Financial Statements B R En R

The amendments allow an entity to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in its separate financial statements:

- At cost;

- In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (or HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for entities that have not yet adopted HKFRS
9); or

- Using the equity method as described in
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category
of investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent
ceases to be an investment entity, or becomes an
investment entity, it shall account for the change
from the date when the change in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27,
there are consequential amendments to HKAS
28 to avoid a potential conflict with HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and to HKFRS
1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the above impact, the Directors do not
anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing The Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("CQ").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in
the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been
amended with reference to the new CO and to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value-in-
use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirely, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loss control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see accounting policy below);
and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, where applicable, on
the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (ie.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), or additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are useful and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) FTESHBEZE)
Non-current assets held for sale (Continued) BEHEZELTHSEZ)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Specially, revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the risks and
rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and has obtained the project completion
report issued by the relevant government authorities,
the properties have been delivered to the purchasers
pursuant to the sales agreement and the collectability of
related receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and
installments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and deprecation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into
account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs and professional
fees incurred during the development period. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in
the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

- exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see
the accounting policies below); and

- exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case, the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve.

Annual Report 2015

3.

FEERBE(E)
Shs

REEsENEEERNM B RE
B AZEBIEEEE UG (S
BETORZ PR A ERE
KBERNEEBEAR - REREH
R INESIENERIRB BEZA
BEREXBHINE o LINEIIER
RAREEIRNIFEEREEREER
REEZANRITHEREHRRE - A
SNEDIMEIBEN AT ENIFERR
BHASHRE

E¥IRE ZE X ZRNELHRENIE
R - M T FIERRS -

- NBEEZEXEFSRER
REERGBEZEE AR
PE 5 Z B S ESNEEE R
BRAZARE  FTAGHE
EZANR

- RERETIINERBR(RTXE
AREIMAI L2 R P2 EH =
Bk

— HBEAIABARHT AR
EXZREKEMNEBINERE
%IHE (AIERRNIEINERIFR
Bz—®n) 2 EXEZR - Bl
FPREMEEBAER - LR
BEEREAREREND

BERE-

REJNGEAMBHRERME - AREE
SNEEH B ER BETRNEREH
RERKNEREXBRESAEEDN
FIRREH (BDARE) - MERA R
I8 B T5IR % HARE 6 1 1T
B - BRIFHAEXRHIRBANE - 1
BERT - BERAXZEHZER -
ELNENZE(WB)REMLE®E
WARER BN 2 [E L fFEEER TR
At e

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded
in net gains or losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which HKFRS
3 applies, (ii) held-for-trading, and (iii) it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-
trading or contingent consideration that may be paid by
an acquirer as part of a business combination may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excluded any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “fair value change
on held-for-trading investments” and “fair value change
on convertible instruments designated as financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss” line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6(c).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments
or (c) financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated
unlisted equity investments as AFS financial assets on initial
recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividend on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quote market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including loan and interest receivables,
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity interests, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan
and interest receivables and trade receivables, assets
that assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the agreed contractual
terms, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of loan and interest receivables and trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a loan and interest receivables or trade
receivables is considered uncollectable, it is written-off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written-off are credited to profit or
loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issued
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, other borrowings and amount due
to ultimate holding company are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums of discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill
(see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that, reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors are to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classified the unlisted equity securities issued
by private entities incorporated in the PRC as available-for-
sale financial assets and recognises at cost less impairment.
The management makes judgment to determine if such
investments impaired, by evaluating the financial health of
and near-term business outlook for the investee including
the operating and financing cash flow. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, no impairment was considered
necessary in relation to the available-for-sale financial
assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to approximately RMB45,779,000 (2014:
RMB45,779,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 17.

Estimated impairment for trade receivables and loan
and interest receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the collateral security. If the financial conditions of the
debtors/borrowers of the Group deteriorate, resulting in
impairment of their ability to make repayments, additional
provision may be required. If the financial conditions of
the debtors/borrowers of the Group, on whose account
provision for impairment has been made, are improved
and no impairment of their ability to make payments
were noted, reversal of provision for impairment may be
required. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of trade receivables and loan and interest receivables
is RMB186,701,000 (2014: RMB28,200,000) and
RMB174,557,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB203,000) (2014: RMB40,672,000 net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB199,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development

At 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts of properties
under development are approximately RMB199,398,000
(2014: RMB461,136,000).

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development according to their net realisable value
based on the realisability of these properties. Net realisable
value for properties under development is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling price
based on the property repurchase agreement, less the
anticipated costs to completion. Based on management'’s
best estimates, there is no material impairment for
properties under development at 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. When the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment due to the change of commercial environment
are different from their estimated useful lives, such
difference will impact the depreciation charges and the
amounts of assets written-down for future periods.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. However, the implementation of the tax various
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the
PRC. There are many transactions and calculation for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB11,216,000 (2014: RMB5,824,000)
and approximately of HKD10,335,000 (2014: HKD35,000)
available for offset against future profits in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively. No deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group'’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. In case where
there are future profits generated to utilise the tax losses,
a material deferred tax asset may arise, which would be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year in which such profits are recorded.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent that it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include input
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 17 and 19 provide detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of various assets.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes other borrowings disclosed in Note 33
to the consolidated financial statements, net of bank
balances and cash and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.
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KRG EENAABER - AEEF
ARG MEABREE - B2A%
—RBAE AEEEZEF=4
BREERMAGETHE -

AEEERANEERTTBELIFFER
ABETSBENRABRGET
BRIERMTANAAEE - ME17TR
1RHEEHEESRREEAAEER
RANMGERDT  BAERTIEERR
HIRFAIERY -

BExaREE

AEEEEETNERNABRAEEZ
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on the recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through

BREEBREE(E)

EETEMENEL SR - (FREHW
—E8  EEEREAKAREERE
BEARERNER - RIBES 22
AEERERBRNRE - BRETR
BRI BBEEIAKZETH EXBEREGE

the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-

backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

ARFEEERELRERE -

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. eMIR
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SR TRAER :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Financial assets HMEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL: R EEF AR
HHEE -
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 14,637 =
Convertible instruments designated as 57 AR A (BE
financial assets at fair value through STABEAT S
profit or loss BEAMRIRTE 48,883 -
63,520 -
Available-for-sale investments AIEEERE 62,750 -
Loans and receivables: EARIEKIE -
Loan and interest receivables FEWE T F B 174,557 40,672
Trade receivables FEUBRE X 186,701 28,200
Deposits and other receivables e N B b e BGR 900 102,322
Bank balances and cash RITHER MRS 12,156 7,881
374,314 179,075
500,584 179,075
Financial liabilities MBEAE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost: 5SS G2 BIE
Trade payables FERTEBRX 107,768 131,162
Other payables and accruals Hib R R ET & B 4,710 5,458
Other borrowings HEE 15,333 =
Amount due to ultimate holding FE SR IR A R FIR
company - 2,000
127,811 138,620
2015FH EHAARERMGERAT 97
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6.

98

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
held-for-trading investments, convertible
instruments designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
investments, loan and interest receivables, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, other borrowings and amount due to
ultimate holding company. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rate and equity price.
Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or
the manner in which these risks are managed and
measured. Details of each type of market risks are
described as follows:

Annual Report 2015

6.

&MIR(E)

b.

MEEREEEHRRBER

AEENIZSRTARER
FEERE  HERRAAE
BEFF AR E ER A #
BRTA - AIHEERE - BI
ERRAE - BUERR - EE
K E A FEUCR - SRITAEER R
& EARR - EEARE
FEETE M - HAbEFIA KB
REZERARIFIEA - $@MTA
FHENEMENE - BZEe
RTAEHENERBREMSE
(SRR - FRE kR MM
EBRRER) - EERRMREE
TR o TXEFI AP KL
FEBMEEK EREEEER
Bz ERERE - AR KM
B RO EREUE B H 1R E ©

mEmEE

AEBEBREREZ S RIMNE
ExEH  MERREESHZ
MR - TSR RE— A
BREDINETE - ARENT
SRR EEENGERRD
RERFFEAT -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

b.

20155

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
0] Currency risk

Other than those subsidiaries established in
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
HKD, the functional currency of the Group
are RMB in which most of their transactions
are denominated. During the year ended 31
December 2015, approximately 5% (2014:
2%) of the Group's turnover is denominated
in HKD. In addition, the Group has certain
financial assets and liabilities denominated
in HKD.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s

EMIR(E)

b. HMHERREEBRRKEZ)
MR (E)
()  BEEER

BR A BB AR L M R% E T
BAR(EgEEEX A
BTN - AEB 2T
HEEEAARE - MK
HBHRHUAAREST
& - BE2015F128
JNBLEFE  AEEZ
EFBL5% (2014 F -
2% ) A ToEHE © Uit
N REBHEAE T
BT EZTBEEK
aff -

REBERHEHRINE

foreign currency denominated monetary HEEBREEREE

assets and monetary liabilities at the end of BEZEMBENT

the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
®E fafR

2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
IN-L Ll ARETT PNL Ayl ARETT
HKD BT 241,411 40,916 17,920 (128)
BHEARBRRROERAR 99
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6.

I 100

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to the
currency of HKD.

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2014: 5%) possible
appreciation or depreciation in RMB against
HKD. 5% (2014: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The Group currently does
not have any foreign currency hedging
policy, the management will continuously
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging its foreign currency
exposure should the need arise. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjust their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2014: 5%)
change in the foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes loans to foreign
operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
lender or the borrower. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit for the year and a negative number
indicates a decrease in post-tax (loss) profit
for the year.

6.

&MIR(E)

b.

HKD BT

There would be an equal and opposite
impact on post-tax (loss) profit for the year
if RMB depreciates 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies.
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MERREEEARRBE (Z)

MR (E)

()

B (&)
HRBES N

RRARFERIHEITH
B mEb o

TRAVNAEEFAR
B WS TU R BEFHE ST
E5% (20144 : 5% )
ZEHREESN o BT A
R E B R 5% (2014
F:5%)BMAEEER
A B R EFEE 3R INE = B
ZHE WKRREEE
HERSIBA[AEE S 2
STy o ANEEIR EAL(
INEESESRBUR o BIEE
1o B EE R INE R
WEERE T EREHH
HINERR - MERED
WREFERFRINET
EE®IER @ WHEXR
2 5% (20144 : 5% )
EBFHFABRNREHERZ
BE - FREESNEIE
MAEEEIINEBHNE
o BREBEZRUEZRA
i {8 XA LD RE & #E LASI
R EEE - UWTNEH
BN T AR TR i 7138
o A ESERF AR
i (BB aFmD

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
(9,331) (1,703)

AR S B REINERZ
B5% » AI¥ F RERB
& (BB a N A 8RRk
BRZFE -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

20155

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances as detailed in Note 29.

The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest exposure
and will consider other necessary actions
when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 100 basis points (2014: 100
basis points) increase or decrease in interest
rates of the People’s Bank of China is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
Directors’ assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2014: 100 basis points) higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax (loss) profit for the
year ended 31 December 2015 would
increase/decrease by approximately
RMB91,000 (2014: RMB58,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
balances.

EELARABRROARAE

6.

EMIR(E)

b. MERRERARRBEE)
hEmEE (E)
(i) FF@EER

AEBEAZE RERE
)2 L e B A SE 29 5 5t
HZ BN RRITERE
[ -

AREE B B AR A
REPBR - AT - &
B B L E B R R I
RIBHE AR X @R
IR E BE M RIT
) o

WBES

LA T8RS D47 ThAR 8
IETE T ERFRER
ZHREBEMET %
DT TR 3R E B
KX EBEZERMTE
REFMAEEMR
Blo ZMAIEEER
A B & R ) = [ B B -
TERFREAREITH
=38 00 kR 4 100 & &
25 (20144 : 100 & &
) WREREZHF
ROUEAIBEE) o 5T
o

s 1) 2= 38 0 sk 3 4> 100
{EE2E(20144F © 1001
B2 mATEEME
HMpEIE  BIAREE
HZE2015%F12A31H
WFE 2B (5E)
bl =S | - AR )
AR #91,0007T (2014
F : AR ¥ 58000
L) TERHERAE
BASE )R KIRTT
FEFREY T R R B2 FTEL
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6.

B 7102

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iif)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities and convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange.
In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments included in held-for-trading
investments had been 10% (2014: 10%)
higher/lower. The post-tax (loss) profit
for the year ended 31 December 2015
would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB1,222,000 (2014: RMB Nil) as a result
of the changes in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.
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6.

EMIR(E)

b. HMHERREEBRRKE(Z)
MR (E)
(i) EERSRE

AEBHME EHRAE
FREERBRANAEE
FFARSEH I EER
MR TARERY
BRERR - AEE 2K
EBRREBEETRER
PRREZRATE - it
SN - AERE R I AIE
eI ERRER - WA
RBEREREZBHZ
R

HBES R

AT SRE DT TR E
WEPRZBERBE

EEO

WETERIEEEIREZ
HERAT A E%
EFRE10% (2014
F:10%) * #E2015
F12A31BILFE 2K
Ttz (B )& H 8 EIxR
DR EEFABZEZEH
IEEESEBMLMN/ R
D H AN R #1,222,000
TC(20144F « 4E) ©
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

20155

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Operational risk

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group’s exposure to operational risk is primarily
attributable to heavy reliance on a major customer
located in the PRC for the segment of construction
of infrastructure and development of properties.
This major customer accounted for approximately
RMB294,700,000 (2014: RMB84,200,000) or 95%
(2014: 98%) of the Group’s total turnover for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The Directors
will continue closely monitoring the performance
and financial position of this major customer to
avoid any adverse impact on the Group’s financial
position.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on trade receivables as
100% (2014: 100%) were due from the Group's
sole customer in the construction of infrastructure
and development of properties segment.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on loan and interests
receivables as 99.8% were due from the Group's
largest customer within the credit business
segment.

EELARABRROARAE

6.

&MIR(E)

b.

MERREZARRYE Z)

BEmRE

HZE2015F12A31HILEE -

AEBENEERKREE S KK
ERBERE GRS R EE
BOSBUARTEN—BEER
Pt EBRAMAEEFHZ
201512 A3 B ILEERAL
¥ 5849 AR # 294,700,000 7T
(20144 : AR #84,200,000
ﬁ)ﬁ9mﬁ2m4¢-98%>

EEBEERYEREFER
ﬁm%%&%%#ﬂ LA %2 3
RNE BRI OB E R

S/ 480
= °

ERmE

MR2015F 128318 ' AR S 7
KReEBTEEMS $El%x
B EANERNEERR A
ﬁé%%#ﬂ%%ﬁﬂmma
RIS EENRAEMESE ©

M20155F12A31H » KEERE

WEFNEERBRES  RHE
%100%(2014¢ 100% ) J5 3Kk

BASBEEMREERMYE
BRDRZME—TS °

R2014F12HA31H * A&
FEREREFENEERRSE
h o RER998% KB EE
EBDEZHEABFE ©

103 U



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

6.

Y 104

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has reviewed the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables, loan and interest receivables and other
receivables at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of bank balance
and cash deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivatives financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve as at the end of the
reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

&MIR(E)

b. HMHERREEBRRKEZ)

Liquidity risk (Continued) Vid kg A=),
Liquidity tables BB E e F
Weighted Repayable Total
average  ondemand or undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  within one year cash flows amount
REXRE KR
miEF BOME HeREEE IEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB®TR ARETT ARRTR
2015 2015%
Non-derivative financial liabilities ST RBRE
Trade payables iR N/AFER 107,768 107,768 107,768
Other payables and accruals AR RIETER N/ARER 4,710 4,710 4710
Amount due to ultimate holding R SEERARHE
company N/ARER - - -
Other orrowings EffEE 9% 16,713 16,713 15,333
129,191 129,191 127,811
Weighted Repayable Total
average on demand or undiscounted Carrying
interest rate within one year cash flows amount
REKER RER
7% FHME ReneEs HHE
% RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
% ARBFT AREFT ARETT
2014 20145
Non-derivative financial liabilties FITETKEE
Trade payables IR N/A TER 131,162 131,162 131,162
Other payables and accruals EERTRETBR N/A @R 5,458 5,458 5,458
Amount due to ultimate holding ER SRR ARIZR
company N/A A ER 2,000 2,000 2,000
138,620 138,620 138,620

20155

EELARABRROARAE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. E&MIAZE)

C Fair value measurements of financial C. EMTAZAREHENE
instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that FEFHESEZLABED
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEESREDI N EEHE
Some of the Group'’s financial assets are measured MNEIREHIFR  NEFE 5 B
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. BEEDNRARBHESE - T
The following table gives information about REPAZENEEEZ ALE
how the fair values of these financial assets are BB E(CERFAZHE
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) RIG R AEIE) o
and inputs used).
Fair value
AREE
As at As at Valuation
31 December 31 December  Fair value technique(s) and
Financial assets 2015 2014 hierarchy key input(s)
R2015% 20146 WMREE HERTREE
MERE 12A31H 12318 &R BABE
Listed equity securities classified as held-for- Asset - Asset - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
trading investment on the consolidated approximately approximately  E—# an active market
statement of financial position RMB14,637,000 il BRI LR
RERMBRARTOBRHEEER RE- EE- EAE
REZ FRAES HARS HARY
14,637,0007C S
Convertible instruments designated as Asset - Asset-  Level 2 Discount rate
financial assets at fair value through approximately approximately F-K determined using
profit or loss RMB48,883,000 Nil a Binomial Option
BEEARMBESABRNIBEE BE- BE- Pricing Model
WA TA HAR% HAR® MR —IE e
48,883,000 25 TEEAETH
=

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
in current and prior year.

AEEREFE F— 2K
=R A B -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

20155

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

o

&MIR(E)

EMTAZARMBENE(E)

FEBHBEREZLREETS
BRERBELAABEHE
(&)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015
RO1SENANBZARRESE

Level 2 Level 3 Total

ot #=# #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Fén FET TR

Financial assets at FVTPL BORAE
AREMEERE
- listed equity securities -HEEE L MRAES
held-for-trading - - 14,637
- convertible instruments ~BEBRLAREEA
designated as financial BRRETREEN
assets at FVTPL ARRTEA 48,883 - 48,883
48,883 - 63,520

The fair values of the financial assets included in
level 2 above have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
a discounted cash flow analysis with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair value.

EELARABRROARAE

FRAFAE—RHBEEZ
AR EEERELAREBERN
RAERASREONEE - A
R B A BB R RRE T 2
ERERZBEE -

EERR NRAMBRAME
RLEMPBEERMBRE
ZEEHERAAEERS -
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7. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 7.
Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable
for i) construction of infrastructure and development of
properties in the PRC; ii) interest income from the provision
of loan financing in Hong Kong; and iii) interest income
from securities investments during the year. Analysis of the
Group's turnover for the year is as follows:

ERTERKG
Bx@

EEBLSFN)TEERRBREERD

Construction of infrastructure and AR
development of properties

Interest income from the provision of loan
financing

Gross proceeds from the disposal of held- HEHIEEFIREH
for-trading investments FriSRIE4A%E

EHRENHSWA

Interest income from securities investments

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for i) construction of infrastructure and development of
properties in the PRC; ii) interest income from the provision
of loan financing in Hong Kong; and iii) interest income
from securities investments during the year. Analysis of the
Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

ReIERR R R

REETEE R EWA

XRR  I)EERUERBMEZFEK

A RiiNEHRE 2 FBRAZ B

R EWRRIE - FARKE 2 & EE
B

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBFT

294,700 84,200

16,026 2,048

31,123 =

674 —

342,523 86,248

W

Yess AR5 M B AR R M %
BRINEBREEFRE ZFEK
A+ Riil) R E 2 F A Z B
R EWFIR © FRANEEZ Wastn T

Construction of infrastructure and SRR R FE R
development of properties
Interest income from the provision of REEFREE R EUA

loan financing
Interest income from securities investments

EHFRENHEWA
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2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT
294,700 84,200
16,026 2,048
674 -
311,400 86,248
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board, being the chief
operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified
by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

- Construction of infrastructure and development of

properties

- Credit business

- Securities investments

Securities investments is a new reportable and operating
segment of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

SR E

RERDERDHMRAFEMAES
SEIXELERRE ) ERZERE
JE B P 32 A Bk B i 2 7 am Bk AR 75 4R
Bl - MEREDMEEERLRRE
Al - AR KB 2 RIS D E o

FhlR  AEERBEEBMGMEE
RIS ARG R L2 D BT

- ERREERMDEZRR

- EEEB
- BHERE

BERERANEEEE2015%12 A31
B I FERFT I RE AL DEL o
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December

Segment turnover

ABERA

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARRTR NS

Construction of infrastructure and ~ SRR RN ELR

SEMRHE(E)
SB DR EE

AT RAEKEIR A SE MEEDHE
o H) e MERE DT -

BE12A31HLFEE
Segment revenue Segment results
gl e SBRE

2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB'000 GIVEX(ON  RMB'000 JRRGVERUN
AERTT WNapol ARRTT PNSiawr

development of properties 294,700 84,200 294,700 84,200 (10) 2837
Credit business FE£H 16,026 2,048 16,026 2,048 27,606 2,048
Securities investments EERE 31,797 - 674 - (16,067) -
Total it 342,523 86,248 311,400 86,248 11,529 4,885
Donation Ba (2,000) =
Gainon disposal of assetsand ~ HESBARIELENEE

liabilities classified as held for REBkE

sale - 45,677
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—FHBA T - 3
Other income Hid A 2,077 2,042
Loss on disposal of held-for- HEBEEERERR

trading investments - (561)
Unallocated exchange loss FAOREREE (0] (405)

Central administration costs HRITHAA
Profit before tax BRTATR R

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2014: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 3. Segment results represents the (loss from) profit
earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including directors’ emoluments,
donation, gain on disposal of assets and liabilities classified
as held for sale, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, other
income, certain depreciation, unallocated exchange loss
and other central administration costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

(7,880) (6,425)

3,724 45,216

N EHRERN DB ZEIERBIITT
FRWZ - NEEITESLEEE
(20144 : 4) o

& D RS R B 3 Pt AR
SENSFTHRERMER - DERAEES
2 EPERER A (BB & A - WA K
RITBEAADE - BREFME - 18
R HESERRBIEHENEERA
Bl HE—HNBARKE B
A~ ETIHE - ROEELER
REMAPRITBEA » t I ERD
FERRRFEMAEZLERREE
HTIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SEEE(E)
Segment assets and liabilities SBEIERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and J,AT?E_:,LK% R Gl PN E SRl
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: PREERBBEIN

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Segment assets DEPEE
Construction of infrastructure and R ER M YRR
development of properties 430,558 533,795
Credit business EEEK 175,877 41,992
Securities investments HERE 126,969 =
Total segment assets DEEELTR 733,404 575,787
Unallocated KoL 189,942 193,695
Consolidated assets HREEE 923,346 769,482
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Segment liabilities PEEE
Construction of infrastructure and R ER M R
development of properties 107,768 168,362
Credit business EEX¥% - -
Securities investments BEIEE 15,333 =
Total segment liabilities DI EEEEE 123,101 168,362
Unallocated KOH 11,523 13,189
Consolidated liabilities REBE 134,624 181,551

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and Mo EEER D FRIE LD EEIRM

allocating resources between segments: = ¢

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other . SRTETHE BERFZ
than certain property, plant and equipment, deposit &~ WHIE — AR AR
paid for acquisition of an associate, deposit paid BT - WA E A A
for acquisition of a subsidiary, certain prepayments, X ftHEI € - & TRMNKIE
deposits and other receivables, bank balances and Re REMEYGR - RITHA
cash and deferred tax asset. K3 & A REIERLIE & B LASN

REDHHFBEE °

20155 EBHEARREROGERAHA 1171
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B E2015F12A318ILFE

8.

I 772

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than other payables and accruals, tax
liabilities and amount due to ultimate holding
company.

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets:

SEMRHE(E)
SPBRERARE)

. DETHMENRRETE
A REAERENRARER
REFRBEAINEE D BB FAAE

BfE-

HthaEEHE

FrADERE N R ERE D BEENE
MR

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of
properties Credit business Securities investments Unallocated Total
ERRHRBRURER ERER EHRE xR #it
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB'000 WIVERUONN RMB'000 WRCVEAVUON RMB'000 MVAXCONN RMB'000 MCCAUORN RMB'000 [GHVERI

ABRTT INSawn

ARETT I3l \RETT

ARRTT

ABRTR INESmMARRTT INsws
Impairment loss recognised in~ SEEREZR
respect of loan and interest ~ F|SHEAH
receivables HESR - = 9 8

Fair value change on convertible 3£ B4 EfE

instruments designatedas 5T ABZHAE

financial asset at fairvalue ~ BEHAARTE

through profit o oss WAL EEE - - - -
Exchange (gain) loss BX(hE)ER - (11580) =
Fair value changes on held-for-  $/FE Bk &

trading investments NN - - - -
loss on disposal of heldfor- L ER/EEERE

trading investments Bt - - - -

(1,084)

1917

9311

- - - 9 B
- - - () -
- R (RN (117
- - - -
- - % u3m 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Other segment information (Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

SEMRHE(E)
SMAERARE)

EHRETIZRERAREELES
RESBGNREEXDMEENE

WH) &
Construction of
infrastructure and
development of
properties Credit business Securities investments Unallocated Total
ERRMRERURAR [BREH EHRE *OR #it

215
RMB'000

2014
RMB'000

2015
RMB'000

2014
RMB'000

2015

RMB000
AERTT N el \RRTT

2014
RMB'000

2015 il
RMB000  EITE{
ABRTR INsawn

2015 ol
UG RVB000
ABRTT I oD

Depreciation e 51 9% 10 - - - 131 12 192 m
Additions to non-current FREEERE

assets (Note) W2 - - 51 1320 - - - 1,309 51 2,629

Income tax expense FERRL 4,093 1,043 2,108 78 - - 2% M 6497 1,155

Bank interest income FFEHA (39) (17) - = @0 = - (1) (15) )

Note:  Addition to non-current assets excluded financial instruments, Mzt #ﬁébﬁﬁﬁiﬁx”ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂli - Ui

deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary/an associate. BB AR BE AR

e
WEEH

Geographical information

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
Group operated in two principal geographical areas — the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of

HE2015F N2014F12 A31 B IEF
B AEEEMEEZEHELEHE
BRI EEEE)REE -

AEBERBINDEP KN ERHRE
BRELRED - NREBERBEE
MEBERREEMERZT

the assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets*
SMERER IS FEREEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TR ARETT AR¥®TTT ARETTT
PRC h 294,700 84,200 45,649 45,831
Hong Kong 5 16,700 2,048 1,361 1,320
311,400 86,248 47,010 47,151
* Non-current assets excludes financial instruments, deposits @ IRBEETBEeRNITE  WE—

paid for acquisition of a subsidiary/an associate.

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

PRI I 2 ], B A B BT S A #0 2T

7
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

8.

Y 71174

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total turnover of the Group

are as follows:

8. SEHRHE)

FEEFRRH

Customer A — Construction of infrastructure & FEA— B R HEER

and development of properties

OTHER INCOME

MEER

HEFERETEFPHRSEARER
R I10%MFIFNAT ¢

9. HfulkA

Bank interest income

Sundry income

Penalty income arising from disposal of
Guangzhou Zhongzhan
(as defined in Note 30)

Compensation income arising from
termination of Proposed Acquisition
(as defined in Note 21)

Compensation income arising from
termination of Property Acquisition
(as defined in Note 28)

Annual Report 2015

RITHE WA

FETRIA

AHERMPR(EER
PFE30) EE ARV ET A

E4R KRB SR
(FERME21)EADN
B EWA

R EREEE(EE
RMIEE28) ELEMEE
WA

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
294,700 84,200
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBTT
75 28

2 14

- 1,800

2,000 -

- 200

2,077 2,042

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

10.  FINANCE COSTS 10. MERF

An analysis of the Group's finance costs is as follows:

REBIABRA AT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Interest expense on margin securities FRESRPAERX

accounts 531 -
Interest expense on other borrowings HEmEERBRX - 47

Less: Interest capitalised in properties under ¥ : &AL ERE YT S
development - (47)
531 -

Finance costs capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2014 was arising from the other borrowings
which are specific for properties under development. The
weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed is

HZE2014F12 A3 B ILFEREAME
HEAEME R B AEERTY)
X506 - BAEESHNEENEFEEE
AIEEFH100% ©

100% per annum.

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. FRSREAX

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARBTT
Current tax: BNEART A

- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R EEAEH 3,335 820
- Hong Kong profits tax —BENEN 2,404 112

Under provision in prior year FFEEREBTR
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HPBIREMEN - 2,335
Deferred tax (Note 35) EIERY IR (M7235) 758 2,112)
Total income tax recognised in profit or loss R IBEHERE TS 4258 6,497 1,155

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

BEBNNERIRZMEE Gt ERF R
AE16.5%=1E o
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B E2015F12A318ILFE

11.

Y 116

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company
and the PRC subsidiaries are 25% for both years.

The tax charges for the years can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit

1.

FRr8MMAX ()

RIEFREAREMBESEMESHE
([EABTE]D) REERBRIEE
iR -3 I N/NCI e = NG A
MEFERE 2 HEH25% ©

REREEERT  FAMSHRS HE
FRIADE M < SERIAT -

or loss as follows:

Profit before tax

Income tax at applicable tax rates

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Utilisation of deductible
temporary differences

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Under provision in prior year

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax effect on tax reduction

Income tax expense

Annual Report 2015

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTRT ARET T
BRIRBIET 3,724 45,216
LIRBEAREGTERNEH (103) 11,016
FT RS R RO S B A
7 5,415 620
BAERTR AR TS 52
(2,280) (1,745)
ARER AN R R
b 32 - (2,112)
{FE AT R R = 2R
758 =
RERMIBBEORBE 2,744 70
FEERETR - 2,335
) I BT AR HERR B A5 B 18
(5) (8,997)
VeSOl iy (32) (32)
FRS X 6,497 1,155
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

12.  (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

20155

12. FABR)ETH

Loss (profit) for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief
executives’ remuneration (Note 13)
Other staff cost
— Salaries, wages and other benefits
— Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

Total staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (including RMB20,000
(2014: RMB28,000) capitalised in
properties under development)

Auditor’s remuneration (including the
fee for the PRC subsidiaries)

— Audit service
— Non-audit service

Donation

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and interest receivables

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases

EELARABRROARAE

FAER) SN2

EF EFERIBTRASR
RN (H1F13)
Hih 8 TR
—¥g - TEMEAER]
— RREFIEH IR

B TR

M - B REETE
(BREERCBERHAYE
AR#20,0007(2014
&F: AR¥28,0007T))

ZEE & (B IE BB
RNRKZEER)

— I ERTS
— IERZERTS

B

B E M F SR
BB

BEGEHENRERE
(NN

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBFIT
1,794 1,484
1,568 901
310 570
3,672 2,955
192 111

777 805

87 115
2,000 =

9 8

427 144
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive's
remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees

g
RMB'000

AERTT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HF2015%128318

EE BT FRTBRARRES
FRER

() EE -EERIFETARHM
&

FARBER LMHRIRQF
ROIKBENES EZEREE
TTABBFMLT

Salaries, Contributions
allowances and to retirement
others benefits  benefits schemes Total
g EHR
RERR MRS AR &8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTT AERTT AE®TT

LEE

Executive directors BES
Ma Zhong Hong (Note SER) 51 111 17 179
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) (Note i) FHR(ZE) Witi) 52 118 8 178
Deng Xiao Gang W 100 207 19 326
Huang Zhen Kun (Note i) BER (W) 30 32 12 274
233 668 56 957

The executive directors' emoluments shown above were mainly for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXRRATEEHE T R REAERALARAKESHARARBIURHME -

Non-executive directors FMTES

Li Yu Xiang (Note i EEAM ) 16 - - 16

Yin Zong Chen (Note i) FREWiv) 30 - - 30

Zhang Lei Lei (Note REE(Wit) 16 - - 16
62 - - 62
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B E2015F12A318ILFE

13.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 13.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’'s
emoluments (Continued)

Fees

i
RMB000

IN:

EE BT FRTBRARRES
wmER(E)

() EFXE -EERIETARHM
®(E)

Salaries, Contributions
allowances and to retirement
others benefits  benefits schemes Total

Ft BRI

AR A HEgR L
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

ARRTR AERTR AERTT

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

EXREERTESME T RRRENA DA R SR IREN AR E «

Independent non-executive directors B FH{TES
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (Note v) RS i) 105 - - 105
He Qing Jia (Note v) fREWY) 2 - - 2%
Wong Kai Tat (Note v} TREHR) 2 - - 2
Wei Jie Sheng (Note i) R2E (i) 5 - - 5
Yu Guan Jian KB 120 - - 120
276 - - 276
Sub-total Vit 51 668 56 1,293
The independent non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
EXFTRRB ST EEHE T ER FENAD TS SNARARE MMM AEHE -
Supervisors Ex
Fang Wei Ran (Note i) TR Hiiti) 6 7 3 86
He Song Xi (Note v) iR Hztv) 10 - - 10
Huang Yong Jing (Note v) EXE(Hity) 10 83 15 108
Wang Xing Ye TEEEE 15 - - 15
Yi Shi Min (Note vii) P (Hitvii) 4 51 5 60
Zhang Yun Feng (Note v) KEE(Hiity) 9 - - 9
Sub-total Vit 54 21 23 288
Deputy chief executive officer BlfTRasE
Wang Hong Yi (Note vii and Note xi) T iR st - 17 34 M
Total 4] 625 1,056 13 1,794

EELARABRROARAE
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13.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13, E¥ EX . FEFRABRSES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) FEE (&)
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s () EE -E=ERTETAEHM
emoluments (Continued) &)

Salaries, Contributions

allowances and to retirement
Fees  others benefits  benefits schemes Total

¥4 EINER
e ERRAET TRl it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z2014%12A31H

IH5E
Executive directors BIEE
Ma Zhong Hong (Note i BERNH) 100 250 25 375
Deng Xiao Gang =2t 100 220 15 335
Huang Zhen Kun (Note i) FiE (i) 25 185 46 256

225 655 86 966

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.
EXATNETESNE T ERRERERARA RN EEEHARIRE HKRAHE -

Non-executive directors FRTES

Huang Zhen Kun (Note i) EEA (i) 5 32 10 4
Zhang Lei Lei (Note i) REE(MH) 30 = S 30
Yin Zong Chen (Note iv) FREM ) 25 = - 25

60 32 10 102
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13.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13, E¥ EX . FEFRABRSES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) FERZ)
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s (a) EF EERIETARBNHHN
emoluments (Continued) & ()

Salaries, Contributions

allowances and to retirement
Fees others benefits  benefits schemes Total

ELR BINER
e REREMEF HEe k]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

EXFROIERITESNE T ERBENALAEZ S DMREREMAROME -

Independent non-executive BUkUTES

directors
Wei Jie Sheng (Note vi) W2 (Hitv) 30 = - 30
Wong Kai Tat (Note vi) TR (M) 120 = = 120
Yu Guan Jian SR 120 = = 120
270 - - 270
Sub-total Ihit 555 687 96 1,338

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

EXAANBIETEEME T EREEIARDES SR MRERBHKRNME «

Supervisors Ex

Lu Ming (Note 1) B (Hritv) 30 - - 30
Qian Fang Fang (Note x) SR (HiHx) 3 - - 3
Wang Xing Ye TRE 15 - - 15
Tang Xian Hua (Note ivand Note xi) & 52 (Htiv R Hitxi) 8 - - 8
Sub-total VBt 56 - - 56

Deputy chief executive officer RlfTHER
Wang Hong Yi (Note vii and Note xii) ~ FAL&(HviRhiitni) = 80 10 9%

Total B8 611 767 106 1,484
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13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(a)

I 722

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014. No emoluments have
been paid to the directors and chief executives as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Notes:

i Resigned on 24 June 2015

ii Appointed on 24 June 2015

iii Re-designated from non-executive director to
executive director on 3 March 2014

iv Appointed on 3 March 2014

v Appointed on 12 February 2015

Vi Retired on 12 February 2015

vii Appointed on 12 August 2014

viii Appointed on 12 February 2015 and resigned on 10
June 2015

iX Appointed on 10 June 2015

X Resigned on 4 March 2014

Xi Resigned on 26 December 2014

Xii Resigned on 4 February 2016

Xiii Appointed on 30 December 2014

Annual Report 2015

13.

EE BT FRTBRARRES

FER(Z

() EE -EERFETAAMNM
& (&)
HE2015%F K 20144F 12 A 31

BItFEE  WEEEXTET
XA B pEE ok [B) 2 pEE 1 {a) B
SRR - HE2015F %2014
F12A318LEFE @ BERE
EREBITIRA B X HEAIEN
© - EAMARSE B/ ZE) X
REBLIHOHE -

i M201556 A24 B BT

i MR2015%6 A24BEZT

ii R2014F3 A3 AIERTE
ERATARTES

iv MR2014F3 A3HERT

v R20156F2 12 A ER(T

vi 201552 128 EE

vii R2014F8 A 12BEZ T

viii R2015E2 A 12E R ER
M2015%F6 5108 BT

ix R2015F6 A 10BEZT

X M201456F3 B4R BHT

Xi R20144%12 A26 BBHT

Xii R201652 A4RBHT

Xiii M2014512 30 A #RF
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13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE" AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b)

20155

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employee of the Group
during the year include four directors (2014: four
directors), details of whose emoluments are set out
in Note 13(a) above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining one (2014: one)
highest paid employee who are neither a director,
supervisors nor chief executive of the Company are
as follows:

13.

EE BT FRTBRARRES
wmER(E)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and bonus
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

¥re o RRhRIEAT
RIRBHRIET IR

FRNAEEREEESFEER
FENEZEER(2014F - W& E
=) BEMSER EXH
13(a) o A - BT~ —%(2014
F:—R)FARAEE - BEE
KEETHRABNESHEES

R RET -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
447 100
9 12
456 112

Nil to RMB1,000,000

During the two years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the Company’s Directors, supervisors, chief
executives or any of the five highest and employees
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the Directors, supervisors, chief executives and
the five highest paid employees has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during each of
the two years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
Apart from the Directors, deputy chief executive
officer and supervisors, the Group has not classified
any other person as chief executives during the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

EELARABRROARAE

Zx AK%1,000,0007T

e T T 5IEE -

Number of individuals

A8

-:iﬂ 2014
1 1

#H E2015%F 2014 12 A 31
BIEMEFE @ AEBEHER
RRRES - EF - T2TH
AERERANESFHIES
e ERBFEIAZSNMA
REBE 7 BE B A E - &
Z2015F 201412 A31H
IEREFE @ BEEE - BEE
FEETBABRAMNGSH
B 12 B AR EE ok [B] 2 BEE ({0 B
& > BE2015F & 2014412
A3TBLEMEFE  BRESE -
BIfTBAEE MBI - ANEE
WESERHEMATOERE
ZITHAR ©
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B E2015F12A318ILFE

14.  (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

SER(GR) 2T

ARBHEANEEESRER R EE (&
1B)BATHRA T BURRTH -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to KABEENEGEE
owners of the Company (18 )&= (2,773) 44,061
2014
‘000
T
Number of shares Bin® A
Weighted average number of ordinary HRERERN(EBR)&ZFME
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) B AT DRE 15 X
earnings per share 1,143,642 1,020,400

No diluted (loss) earnings per share have been presented
as there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

15. DIVIDENDS 15.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2015, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2014: RMB Nil).
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;13
R2015F  EF G NREXTERIR

THEMIARE - T B W& BR AR &
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mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31B ILFE

16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% BERMR
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvement equipment vehicles Total
& KER
HAEERE WAERE RE - Hy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
COoST BE
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 818 = 193 150 343
Additions INE - - 1,309 1,309
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H - 193 1,459 1,652
Additions HE 24 27 - 51
At 31 December 2015 #®2015%12A31H 24 220 1,459 1,703
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ B#HFER
AND ACCUMULATED ZHRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014 2014F1A18 = 81 88 169
Provided for the year (Note) ERNBEE) = 52 59 11
At 31 December 2014 72014512 A31H - 133 147 280
Provided for the year (Note) FRBENZ) 5 42 145 192
At 31 December 2015 1®2015%12A318 5 175 292 472
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At 31 December 2015 1®2015%12A31H 19 45 1,167 1,231
At 31 December 2014 2014412318 - 60 1,312 1,372

Note: Included in depreciation provided for the year of
approximately RMB20,000 (2014: RMB28,000) is capitalised
in properties under development in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, as
these furniture, fixtures and office equipment and motor
vehicles are used at the construction site.

20155

EELARABRROARAE

Mt FERITEREFT L AR 20,0007
(20144 + AR ¥28,0007T) R
2015F 12 A31 HWMER A ISR K
FERPWEETENME  RERER
- HEREEARTETIRELIR

BB -
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16.

17.

I 126

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. HE BERSBEZ)

The above property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

AEME - BERREEB JIAEKR
ERTHNERNREHREITE -

Leasehold Improvement Over the shorter of HEHE T HAE20%
the lease term or 20% (ABEE & A%)
Furniture, fixtures and 8-20% R~ EEN 8-20%
office equipment FNE g
Motor vehicles 8-20% RE 8-20%
GOODWILL 17. &8
RMB'000
ARET T
COST j57%. 3
At 1 January 2014 201451 A1H 44,459
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37)  WAUKEE— I B A RIS E A (47737) 1,320
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 72014412 A31H }%2015%12831H 45,779
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT RrtiR{E
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and R2014%1 818 ~ 2014F12A318 &
31 December 2015 2015%E12A31H -
CARRYING VALUES RE{E
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 72014412 A31H }%2015%12A31H 45,779
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17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17.

Impairment test on goodwiill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill have
been allocated to two individual cash-generating units
(CGUs), comprising one subsidiary in the construction of
infrastructure and development properties segment and
one subsidiary in the credit business segment. The carrying
amounts of goodwill are allocated to the following units at
the end of the reporting period:

mE(E)

mEEENR

SUREAAME - BECHEEMIE
BErRInREeELEU([REELE
fiz])  BERERREERMYFEE

R — RN E QR RREREER
DEH) — B AT c RIWEHRK -
BERAEC D RENTEL :

EREREERR R
MERR

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties
Zhongfang Chaozhou (“Unit A")

Credit business BEXY
Chung Hwa Finance Limited (formerly FEEERRAR

(RIfEE B EE

known as “Newpont Finance Limited”)
("Unit B")

During the year ended 31 December 2015, management
of the Group determines that there are no impairments of
any of its CGUs containing goodwill (2014: Nil).

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

Unit A

The goodwill is mainly attributable to the opportunity for
increasing returns as the project of Zhongfang Chaozhou
is @ major property development project which was
supported by the local government of Chaozhou. The
support from the local government is important and
helpful in completing the project, a future profitability of
the project shall be promising. In view of such favourable
terms and conditions, the Directors are of the view that
the project is in the benefit of the Company.

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

RN ([AZENL])

BRRAD(BEAL)

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
44,459 44,459
1,320 1,320
45,779 45,779

HZE2015F12A318 ILEE  A&EEH
EEERBESERENIMNIREE
ABMWERE(20144F « £) -

iR eELEMNMNTKRESENE
it N E ZEERE T

AEf

BEDTERE@BENNEE - T
F R BRI IE B RN B BT SR
MERMEERIAR - EHBTNX
FUBRERT+OEENRERN - BB
B R RERENHDE F B AT R EARA o R
ZEGRRGEBEER  EFRR/E
B AARRF &
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17.

I 128

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test on goodwill (Continued)
Unit A (Continued)

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a number of expected
construction years, and discount rate of 23.70% (2014:
24.67%). Cash flow projections during the budget
period for Unit A is also based on the budgeted sales and
expected gross margins during the budget period and
the same raw materials price inflation during the budget
period. Expected cash inflows/outflows, which include
budgeted sales, gross margin and raw material price
inflation have been determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of Unit A to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of Unit A.

Unit B

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5 year period, and
discount rate of 10.57% (2014: 12.28%). Unit B's cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 3% (2014: 3%) growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit's past performance
and management’'s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of Unit B to exceed
he aggregate recoverable amount of Unit B.
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wmeEE)
HmERENR(ZE)
AEfi (&)

BNz aJ YR B & 58 Th IR IR (E (B E
HE ZAERAEEEMEEA
ERTHNMBBEEGMTNRESR
2 ARITIEEK23.70% (2014 4
2467%) - ABINTBE IR SR
EEAMBEEEHNTEEHEE RTE
HAEFI R LA N T8 & HA R FE R R A REHE
HEBRGE - BHRESRARH(E
REEHEE  EFEXEREMEHERB
R)TREBARREEEEH M5
EHOFEHSE - EEERE 0 A LT
AR EM AR e E TS EHA
BAREmMAERHAEA AT E 2
o

BEfi

ptEEf 2 ] Bl £ RETIIRIEFE A EE
FE - ZAtEEAEEEM ARFTE
MY BBEGTNRESRE - AR
I8 & 10.57% (20144F : 12.27%) ° B
BURAFHENRS RETERNF A
BEMIEREE3I%(2014F : 3%) i
BT o g R EIBIBMERE TS K IBA
B UYEBLEEBETENTERES
BEX - FHEBEFENHEMEZZR
FEIFSRA MR (RIEEE
HERENX)BE - ZEMT0IRE
BUMNBERELEEEEMEERE
RTEERS I - BIREME - N EEW
BREMEMSIEN ST EHBE
o7 B BR T 42 (B EB 5 B BE iz AY AT W [B] 48
B o
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18.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. TWA[EHERS
Available-for-sale investments comprise: At ERE BT
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Unlisted investments classified as PERIEREBEED

non-current assets: FELETRE :

— equity securities —IRAREH 62,750 -
The above unlisted equity investment represents (i) 4.96% it IE TR AR A HE () — R B AL
(2014: Nil) equity interest in a PRC private limited company ABBAT (HE5E AR EETRE)
engaged in banking business; and (ii) 4.35% (2014: Nil) H94.96% (2014%F : 4 )PRiE R (i) —
equity interest in a PRC private limited company engaged RS R B AL A S PR A B (HL 276 40 S
in tower crane rental, concrete logistics, concrete pumping AE - BRI ERtFERRE
and technical engineering training and services. They are W TA2 42 2 R BR 7S ) 4.35% (20144 -
measured at cost less accumulated impairment at the end )RR - IR AR AR R R 2
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable SRES R RESAEAABEM
fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors are SHEmEESEA  EERA /&ﬁ
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured (EEEE T (5t o
reliably. B

19. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS 19. EBEBERAREEMHAESHHE
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT BEMTHREBIA
OR LOSS
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Financial assets EERBRAAEE

designated at FVTPL:
— Convertible bonds mature
over one year

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

ARSI EE
— —FRE B
AR S

48,883 =
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19.

I 7130

CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (Continued)

On 20 August 2015, Sichuang Overseas Investment
Development Corporation Limited (”Sichuang Overseas”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as a subscriber,
agreed to subscribe 4%-coupon rate convertible bonds
which were issued by Asia Resources Holdings Limited
("ARHL"), a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability and the issued shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 899), in the
principal amount of HK$56,160,000 (“ARHL Convertible
Bonds”). Assuming the conversion rights attaching to
the ARHL Convertible Bonds are exercised in full at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.72 per conversion share,
a total of 78,000,000 conversion shares of ARHL will be
allotted and issued. As at 31 December 2015, the fair
value of the ARHL Convertible Bonds was approximately
RMB48,883,000 (equivalent to HK$57,488,000). The gain
arising from fair value changes of ARHL Convertible Bonds
approximately of RMB1,084,000 was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Details of the acquisition of ARHL Convertible Bonds has
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8
September, 2015.

There was no redemption of ARHL Convertible Bonds
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the ARHL Convertible Bonds
has been pledged as security under the margin securities
account.

The fair values of ARHL Convertible Bonds were valued
by BMI Appraisal Limited (“BMI"), independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group, using
the Binominal Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the
model of ARHL Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2015
were as follows:

Stock price HK$0.43
Adjusted conversion price HK$0.72
Volatility 74,97 %
Dividend yield N/A
Option life (years) 2.64 years
Risk free rate 0.66%

Details of the fair value measurement for the convertible
instruments designated as financial assets at FVTPL are
disclosed in Note 6(c).
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EHEBBEARREARIHME
RENWRKRIA(E)

M2015F8 A20H + BAIEFING A 3
BAERAG([BEEIN - ARREE
BEBAR)(EARBA)RERERD
MERIERRABR AR ([mMER]
RBESREFMAZHER AR HE
BITRMARB AT ER LT (ARG R
% 1 899) ) BTN %8 456,160,000
BITHAB R IR E 5 ([ M E IR AT
BRES]) - REREMERTBEKE
FH R IRRE R P ERE SRS
F& %19 0.72 8 T IEREAT(E AR %
N 3174 $£78,000,000 % 25 M & R
R o R2015412 A31H - 25 M
BRABBRESHAABENAAR
#% 48,883,000 7t ( 18 & 74 57,488,000
BIT) - I NERT IR ESH A
AEBEEEHMELENRIZNARE
1,084,000 A& £2015F 12 A31H
IEFERERER

BEREDMNE R AR EFNFE
FRANRIHEA2015F9 ASHAA

t‘:t‘o

HZE2015FE12A31 0 IFEE  WEE
O gm M E R AT AR (S 5 o

M2015F12 A318 © ZNERATHAR
BAFE THEE  (EAFREFESFNKF

op °

TMERTBEEREFNAAEERRE
AEEVEFENBISEREER
EET A AMBEFFEER AR ([ FRFF
BDFAA—EAHAETEREAETH
B ° A2015%F 12 A31H » TEMBIRA]
B EHFEX N ABESS AT

f&(E 0.43% 7T
KRR (E 0.72%8 7T
Dt ] 74.97%
f% 8 & T
ERMEFHR () 2.64%F

4 [ B | 2= 0.66%
BT AEALBENAEZNY
BEEMNA BB TAEN AR BETE
R EF B M TE6(Q)F R -
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20. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 20, EHRERRAE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%TT AREFTT
Fixed-rate loan receivables TEEEWE K 174,760 40,871
Less: Accumulated impairment allowance & : Z5tEERE (203) (199)
174,557 40,672

Included in the gross balances are loans of approximately
RMB21,299,000 which was secured by unlisted shares of a
private limited company incorporated in Hong Kong (2014:
RMB481,000 was secured by property).

REESRBIEERK AR21,299,000
TTABRBFMA I —FELABRA
A IE LT R B R (20144 - A
RH¥481,0007T LAY ZEEIRIR) o

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FhERE B METH ST
- Current assets —MBEE
— Non-current assets —JEREBEE

At 31 December 2015, the loan receivables arising from
credit business bear fixed interest rate ranging from 12%-—
15% (2014: 10%-42%) per annum.

The maturity profile of these loan receivables from
customers (including interest receivables), net of
impairment losses recognised, at the end of reporting
period, analysed by the remaining periods to their
contracted maturity, is as follows:

174,557 40,614
- 58
174,557 40,672

M2015F12 8318 » REEEKE
EREREFTIZETEFFENT12%-
15% (20144 : 10%-42% )5t 5. ©

RBEMKR - ZFRREFPER (BT
FEW A B HIRR B MR E B RIZ A 4
B THEARE DT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT

Repayable: R TFHFEREE :
Within 3 months =R®AA

Over 3 months but less than 1 year A= EAELR—F
Over 1 year but less than 3 years HiE—FEIR=F

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

117,582 10
56,975 40,604
- 58
174,557 40,672
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20.

B 7132

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements of allowance for impairment during the
year were as follows:

BlRERRFIR(E)

FRREREESNT

At 1 January M1A1R

Acquisition through business combinations i@ #5544t UK EE
Impairment loss recognised during the year &N HBIEEE

Written off during the year F HOR
Exchange realignment M B
At 31 December M12A31H

The loan receivables from customers have been
reviewed by the management of the Company to
assess impairment allowances which are based on the
evaluation of collectability, aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection statistics of
individually significant accounts or a portfolio of accounts
on a collective basis.

At 31 December 2015, none of the loan and interest
receivables was past due but not impaired (2014: Nil).

The fair value of the Group’s loan and interest receivables,
determined based on the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted using the applicable interest
rate at the end of reporting period, approximates to the
carrying amount of the loan and interest receivables.

The loan receivables outstanding as at 31 December 2015
and 2014 are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
- 191

9 8

®) -

3 =

203 199

AAFEEEEERNEREFPER -
ARHERE R - DERN AW EIEE
ZaHh - BRE MRS ITIA R E IR E
ZH g (BREREERE REREAK
Faink B EERFAES RBEUK
FCER)

M2015%12 A31H @ HIEEZ LEK
FIECBEERBE014F « ) o

AEENREERENENRAEE
THER AR E MR A E R M R KR
FREAREFREREMETE - HE
WER R B REREERS

M20155% 201412 A318 © HAkE
BN ETABITETE -
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21.  DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 21. WHE—TEHMEBATRYIANTS

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT

IWEEFYBE(EE R T30
sz HET & - 80,000

Deposit paid for acquisition of
Shenzhen Zhong De (as defined below)

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated
12 December 2014, Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian
Investment Development Company Limited 23|k H0
BlEIEEERAR AT (the “Shenzhen Shen He”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the acquisition agreement dated 12 December 2014
(the "Acquisition Agreement”) with Shenzhen Newpont
Investment Company Limited SF®YIT# R EEERS
[R/A 7] (the “Shenzhen Newpont”), pursuant to which
Shenzhen Newpont has conditionally agreed to sell, and
Shenzhen Shen He has conditionally agreed to acquire the
sale shares, representing 70% paid up capital of Shenzhen
Zhong De Logistics Company Limited 7 3I|7 REW) 7R B R
/A8 ("Shenzhen Zhong De"”) and the shareholder’s loan
at a total consideration of RMB 150,000,000 (the “Proposed
Acquisition”). At 31 December 2014, the balance of
RMB80,000,000 represented a refundable deposit paid as
part of the consideration.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 3
August 2015, Shenzhen Shen He and Shenzhen Newpont
entered into the termination agreement (the “Termination
Agreement A”) on 3 August 2015 to terminate the
Proposed Acquisition with immediate effect.

Shenzhen Newpont has refunded the received
considerations of RMB100,000,000 together with the
liquidated compensation of RMB2,000,000 to Shenzhen
Shen He during the year ended 31 December 2015
pursuant to the Termination Agreement A.

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

RIBEARFBHA2014F12 1288
g RITEFRI R EREER
AR(ERINEF] - RAF 2 EHK B
ANF) 2014512 A 12 B BRI
HEEEEERAR(DERIFF LT
v E G (T ERED) - Bt - &
I RERERZEHE - MR
BEGREZWEHEERD - HERF
ImBREMRERAR(NRYZRE])
BEHBEAT0% ERRER - BRE
AR #150,000,0007T ([ 25 W B =
IH]) e A20145E12 4318 » &8AR
#80,000,000 TIEEARE—IHHH
BEfARERE -

BIEAANFHEA20155E8 3R
& ORI RORYIFT 20158
A3BRIME IR # (TR IEBREAD
BIBF4R | FRERURBE B IA o

BIBZIEBZEA - R AERER
201512 A31 B IEFERREIL AR
EBE WA EARE 100,000,000 A
BEEEE ARM2,000,0007T ©
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22.  DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE 22. WHE—EBREATRYIANTS

Y 7134

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT

Deposit paid for acquisition of 30%
equity interest of Hai Yue Real Estate
(as defined below) R

On 27 July 2015, Shenzhen Shi Cheng He Chuang Jian
Investment and Development Company Limited* &3l
WAAIEKREERAR AR (“Cheng He Chuag Jian”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the acquisition agreement with Shenzhen Shi Hou Feng
Trading Company Limited* ®YITHELZ FER A A
(“Hou Feng”), pursuant to which Hou Feng conditionally
agreed to sell and Cheng He Chuag Jian conditionally
agreed to acquire 30% equity interest of Guangzhou Hai
Yue Real Estate Development Company Limited* /&
BREMEZRREAR /AT ("Hai Yue Real Estate”) at a total
consideration of RMB195,000,000 (the “Hai Yue Proposed
Acquisition”). Hai Yue Real Estate is a company with
limited liability established under the laws of the PRC and
is principally engaged in developing, constructing, selling,
renting and managing of commercial building, namely
Dongshan Plaza (the “Property”) located in Guangzhou,
the PRC.

Details of the Hai Yue Proposed Acquisition has been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27 July
2015. At 31 December 2015, the acquisition has not
been completed and the balance of RMB175,000,000
represented the refundable deposit paid to Hou Feng.

* English name for identification only

WEEBEFHE(ERZR
TX)30% At AT ST A

175,000 =

R2015F7 278 « FINTEK A &I=2
REZRRERLAR(HMERE] &
RRZEWNBAR) BRI TELE
SERAR([EE DT W -
Bt EEEBRGREHE  mWaE
Bl RYRERBEENSEREE
BRERAR([EBEEME|)30%M
7 - BEREARK195,000,0007C([ 7
BEFWEEIE]) - BEFMHELS—
RIBE R EEG MK IV ERE T
A EEEREREKREBIIRF
BEEMAEILES([ME]D)NERE -
ER O HE  TERTEER-

BEEZRKRBEENFABERAEAR
RIHEIA2015F7 A27 B RAE R
= o 2015128318 @ WA R
KRR - R AR 175,000,0007TF
ENEEMRE S -

* AR A TEEE
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23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23. BEDYE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT

Properties under development which TR 128 B MR it
are expected to be completed and AtREzERPME
available for sale within 12 months BEUTEE:
comprise of the following:

Construction costs and expenditure KA N
capitalised BT 199,398 443,922
Interests capitalised BERMEFE - 17,214
199,398 461,136
The properties under development are all located in the R YED LA APE o
PRC.
24. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24.
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBFT
Listed investment LIhE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LT ZRAES 14,637 =
The fair values of the above listed securities are determined Lt EBHF 2 AR BEIIRRERD
based on quoted market bid prices available at the Stock RERFTATMMIZEABERT - B#
Exchange at the end of the reporting period. Further RN BEEZEMER M6+ 5
information of the fair values measurement is disclosed in -
Note 6(c).
As at 31 December 2015, the held-for-trading investments 2015512 A31H » BIEEEHREE
has been pledged as security under the margin securities TER - ERAFRESRPOVERRD -
account.
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25.

I 136

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JEUWBR X
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREHE

The Group has not specified the credit period to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the repurchase agreement at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition date:

FEARRR
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
186,701 28,200
186,701 28,200

AEETEARHEHESEFEERE
Hi o PR BAR AR 18 01 FE 177 2% B R
(RRE B ZWARERHE) & KR
K (FBRRERE®) WRER O TIE R
T

0-30 days 0E30K

31-60 days 31%860%
61-90 days 61290K
Over 90 days 90K £

All of the trade receivables were related to one customer
of construction of infrastructure and development of
properties segment. This customer was a stated-owned
enterprise located in the PRC and has long-term business
relationship with the Group. The Group has not specified
the credit period to this stated-owned enterprise customer
and given that the Group has received amounting to
approximately RMB99,000,000 from this customer by
way of direct bank payment during the year ended 31
December 2015, the Directors considered that none of the
balance due from this stated-owned enterprise customer
has been past due as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 and
no impairment is required. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances as at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
126,300 28,200
60,401 -
186,701 28,200

FT 78 B U AR SR B EL A R e i AR R M 2
BEIB—REFEH - B AT
EMEErE  BERSEREERAE
BEER  AEBEWEASLEA
BEFEEEESH MEAARNERR
HE2015F12831BIEFEHBE
BRI EREPKEY AR
99,000,0007T * EERA * 12015F
&2014F 12 A31 At EEK LR G
¥RFPMEHRERE - BAENRE
B - 2015 20145128318 »
RE B W EZF LR E EER

[}
am °
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26. AMOUNT DUE FROM A FORMER CUSTOMER 26. [EW—RAIEEZEHRIE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Shenyang Water General Corporation YERS T B ROKEB A A
("SWGC") (ra®KkgEral) - 96,656
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERZE(S - (96,656)

When the Group was engaged in the production and
sale of urban purified water business before July 2002,
SWGC was its sole customer. The amount represented the
outstanding balance on the purchase of water. Pursuant
to the agreement entered between the Company and
SWGC, the amount has to fully settle before 31 December
2005. However, SWGC had settled RMB400,000 only up
to 31 December 2005. The Directors are of the opinion
that the outstanding balance is unable to recover and
full impairment has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in previous years and then
determined to fully written-off the outstanding balance in
2015.

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27.

REERR2002F7 ARTIE A EMES
EWEFRERE - BRKEAQT
EH—BR  ZSeEEREATK
B RER o RIFAR B B HIKER A
FETMWHE - ZZEFIEEN2005F 12
A31BAIEEEE - /A + EE2005
F£12H31H - BXKEQNTEEEA
R #400,0007T - EERBZERKE
AeEdel - ERRIFE 2 A8
RNFERBEURME © RIEMR20155%
TEAG AR ME B R R B Y -

AR - ke RAMERERER

Consideration receivables for the disposal of & E N E &) R B

Guangzhou Zhongzhan (Note 30) (H15£30)

Prepayments and other receivables

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

B R0R I B A B W AR R

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
- 69,000

900 33,330

900 102,330
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28.

29.

I 138

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 20
December 2013, Shenzhen Jinma Innovation Development
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Jinma”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with ISH Logistics Yanbao (Shenzhen)
Limited (the “ISH Vendor”) for the acquisition of the
property at a total consideration of RMB125,000,000
(the “Property Acquisition”). At 31 December 2013, the
balance of RMB62,500,000 represented a refundable
deposit paid as part of the consideration.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2014, Shenzhen Jinma and ISH Vendor entered into
the termination agreement (the “Termination Agreement
B”) to terminate the Property Acquisition with immediate
effect.

Up to the date of the Termination Agreement B, Shenzhen
Jinma has paid RMB100 million in total as part of the
consideration of the Property Acquisition to ISH Vendor.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, Shenzhen
Jinma has received the refund of RMB100 million together
with the compensation amount of RMB200,000 pursuant
to the Termination Agreement B.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash are mainly denominated in
RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from
0.01% to 0.35% (2014: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.
The bank balances are deposited in creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

Annual Report 2015

28.

29.

WrRB M3 - S B B 0l PR3 (T RYET
&®

BIEAR NG BEA2013F12 H20H
Z2RE R FAFERBERA
A(RIeE]  A2a2EHBA
7)) BESEEEBRYRCRI) FR
REl([REEEERES DIIVEE
HEAWENE  BREBARE
125,000,000 C ([ W EEEIE]) -
M2013F 12 A31H @ £H ARE
62,500,000 TIEE M AIREZE® © 1E
BEDRIE -

BEANFBHA2014F3H108H
e FEESEHEERE S
RIS #R T ([ 42 EaRB]) - BIRFAR
LIEMZEREEEIE -

NI

HER - H=BEH  FIELEERNE
=+ A R #100,000,0007C © {E & M4
AEEHERES I MYEKBEED
HARE - BZE2014F12A31 B ILE
E R B ERERIEHRHBESR
K AR 100,000,0007 @ EREES
2 AR #200,0007T °

BITHERRA S

RITEBR LIRS T BUAREFE -
W FREMRFBRT - ARED
BEEmAMKEMER - AW - RIE
B s ONE B IR R D KB EE - B
[E R MEEERE)  NEE A ERE
R EEXRBNRITEARERL
BRKEMEE -

BITHEBREFEHMBRNEN T
0.01% Z0.35% (20144 : 0.01% =
0.35% )T EFI B o IRITAERTRITH
MEOLSBEBERIARIT -
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30.

20155

ASSETS/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 13 August 2013, the Company entered into the
disposal agreement with Shenzhen Chengxin Xingye
Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhen Chengxin”),
whereby Shenzhen Chengxin has conditionally agreed to
purchase and the Company has conditionally agreed to sell
the entire issued share capital and the shareholder’s loan
due to the Company of Guangzhou Zhongzhan at the
consideration of RMB280,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The
principal activity of Guangzhou Zhongzhan is properties
development.

On 26 November 2013, the Company and Shenzhen
Chengxin have entered into a supplemental agreement
to extend the payment terms (the “Supplemental
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement,
the payment of RMB120 million shall be paid by Shenzhen
Chengxin on or before 31 December 2013 plus a penalty
of 1.5% thereon, equivalent to RMB1.8 million. At 31
December 2013, the non-refundable deposit of RMB106
million has been received from Shenzhen Chengxin and
the Disposal has been completed on 6 January 2014.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 24
July 2014, 11 November 2014 and 10 December 2014
respectively, the Company received a notice from
Shenzhen Chengxin for requesting reduce the final
payment from RMB119 million to RMB69 million. The
Company has entered into the deed of amendment with
Shenzhen Chengxin dated 11 November 2014 (the “Deed
of Amendment”) for adjusting the total consideration
from RMB280,000,000 to RMB230,000,000. The Deed
of Amendment has been duly passed by the shareholders
by way of poll at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 29 December 2014.

EELARABRROARAE

30.

BoRSIBFERENTEMERNE
& faff

R201348 8138 » AARIEFYIT
BEEXBEFBHRAT(RIBED)
FETHE B - Bt BB EEK
HRZEE  MAQRRAKEREL
EEMPEEIBEBHITRARER
KRB ZBREER  REAARE
280,000,0007C ([ HEHEIE]) - EINAF
ROEEEE BMERE -

R2013511 8268 » ARQ B EFERIIH
SR T BEREEE(HE
Tl o BBEETWE - RYIBE
JBRR2013F 12 A31B 2RI AR
#120,000,0007C 2 FRIBMNE1.5% 2
S (HE R ARE1,800,0007T) ° A
2013512 A318 - 2WEIFEIIHET
AiRER S AR 106,000,000 © M
HEEZBEDN2014F1 A6B AT °

BRBEARLFBES R R2014F7 H24
B - 2014511 A11 8 &2014512 A
108 AE - AW ENRYIHE
RBEA - BREHFERERAARE
119,000,000 T8 & A R #69,000,000
JC ° ARRIEMA2014511 A 11 B EZF
IERT BRI B ([T ]) -
4R (B h A R#280,000,0007T %
= AR #230,000,0007T © {E5T2ED
RARARIFE2014F12 A29H B AR
RHEERIKE FARRNIEERRER
i -

139 U



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
B E2015F12A318ILFE

30. ASSETS/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS 30.

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

As the Disposal has been completed during the year ended
31 December 2014, the Group has recognised a gain on
disposal of assets classified as held for sales as follow:

BoRSBFRENTEMERNE
& ARE)

BARHESEEREZ2014912 A31
BIEFETAK @ ARREREEDHE
AREELERNEERSDT ¢

2014
RMB'000
ARETTT
Adjusted consideration received and receivable B R SRR (E 230,000
Disposed of assets classified as held for sale HEDEARBIEHENEE (524,348)
Disposed of liabilities associated with HE RS BERFEHEN
assets classified as held for sale BEEBNARE 340,025
Gain on disposal HEwS 45,677
Payment manner: SRER
Deposit received during the year ended HZE2013F12A3181LFE
31 December 2013 BEWET® 106,000
Cash received during the year ended HE2014F12A318ILFE
31 December 2014 2UIE £ 55,000
Consideration receivables (Note 27) EWRIE (H1at27) 69,000
230,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AHESHEEARRESHAFEE :
During the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A3181LFE
Deposit received BlES 106,000
During the year ended 31 December 2014 #32014%F12A31HLLEE
Cash consideration BeRE 55,000
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of W BEERITERERS (25,155)
29,845

The consideration receivables of RMB69,000,000 has been
received in full during the year ended 31 December 2015.

B 7140

FEUL B A R #69,000,0007T 2 A E
Z2015F12 A31 B It FEEREW
HY ©
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31. TRADE PAYABLES 31. MEfTIRS:
Trade payables represented accrued expenditure on EREER AR REARY BIEEAS
construction comprises construction costs and other BREMTBEMERYX 0 JIiREARE
project-related expenses which are payable based on Ext=NEEERE S o HERG I &
project progress measured by the Group. The suppliers By AREBIETEEH -
have not specified the credit period granted to the Group.
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the PA T AR R Hi R M e~ BR 20 A BR 5
end of the reporting period: DHT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Within 90 days CFNA 22,407 874
Over 90 days 90KIA 85,361 130,288
107,768 131,162
32.  ADVANCED PROCEEDS RECEIVED FROM A CUSTOMER 33, H—&EFEKROTEKFESE
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Advances proceeds received in respect of: B AT A & UEAIFEUL
PRSI
— Zhongfang Chaozhou — B M - 37,200
At 31 December 2014, the advanced proceeds received R2014E 128318 » REkR—8EF
from a customer represented advanced payment from BRFEEREHIMNE Pt T
the customer of Zhongfang Chaozhou in relation to the HEVEr o 4E6p AR - B8 B YA
construction work. The balance was unsecured, non- ERBES AR EMNEEYRERER
interest bearing and will be used to settle the contract BB A4S -
price in relation to the development project located in Jing
Nan Fen Yuan in Chaozhou in future.
All advanced proceeds received had been fully utilised FAECWKTENZEREE20154F12
to set-off the trade receivable during the year ended 31 B 318 - FEE RS LA 8 e Uk
December 2015. BEZR o
2015F%H BHELARBREROBRAF
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33.  OTHER BORROWINGS 33. Hfthffs
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Secured: B
Margin securities accounts HFRESFERR 15,333 =
Carrying amount repayable within one year 7B —%F N{EEHEREEE 15,333 =

As at 31 December 2015, approximately RMB15,333,000
(2014: Nil) represented the margin value in broker’s
account. The margin value will be charged at 9% per
annum. The borrowings was secured by the held-for-
trading investments and ARHL Convertible Bonds with
carrying values of RMB14,637,000 and RMB48,883,000 as
at 31 December 2015, respectively.

M2015F 12 A31H » AR
15,333,0007T (20144 « )& 4R
FRFESE - FREBZFEFNEI%
B o BEAR2015F 12 A31 HEREE
SR A AR 14,637,000 kAR
48,883,000 TR 1EE EILE K 2o
BRI E SR

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. ;%
2015 2014
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bin&E o8 R E |
RMB’000 RMB'000
N & ARETTT
Authorised, issued and  EE  BRTR
fully paid: BRE :
— Domestic shares of —SREEARE
RMB1 each 1TTHARE R
At 1 January W1 A1H 600,000,000 600,000 600,000,000 600,000
Issue of Domestic BITAER
Shares (Note a) (Hieta) 120,000,000 120,000 = =
At 31 December MW12A31H 720,000,000 720,000 600,000,000 600,000
— H shares of —BREEARE
RMB1 each 17T HAR
At 1 January M1A1B 420,400,000 420,400 420,400,000 420,400
Issue of H Shares BITHRR
(Note b) (Hizth) 84,080,000 84,080 = =
At 31 December M12A31H 504,480,000 504,480 420,400,000 420,400
Total st 1,224,480,000 1,224,480 1,020,400,000 1,020,400
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a

(b)

On 9 June 2015, the Company completed the issuance of
120,000,000 Domestic Shares at the price of RMB1 per share
under the general mandate. Details of the issuance has been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 9 June
2015. The new Domestic Shares rank pari passu in all respects
among themselves and with the existing Domestic Shares and
H-Shares.

On 5 May 2015, the Company and the placing agent,
completed the placing of the total of 84,080,000 H-Shares
at the price of RMB1 per share (equivalent to HK$1.25)
under the general mandate. Details of the placing has been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 5 May
2015. The new H-Shares rank pari passu in all respects
among themselves and with the existing Domestic Shares and
H-Shares.

35. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the major deferred tax asset recognised
and the movements thereon during the current and prior

34,

35.

B (&)

(a) R2015F6 98 © AR F THRBIE
— MR IR H#EE£ 17 120,000,000 8% & A% A
REITHNER - BERTHFES
HRAAE BEA2015F6 A9R A
NE - ZEFTRNERSEREREA
BRI RHRTES S = A R SR -

(b) 201565850 » AR R ERER
12 SE K AR IR — AR I 35 1784,080,000
REBRARE1ITTEER1.25%87T)
HIHAR - RS FIEMFBEHARA
ARIBEA2015F5 ASHM RS ©
ZEMHRE B RARERNERKEH
RRIERFE=Z A REREF -

REEIRIA

ATREERNEIBECHRAEEN
ERAFRELBEFENEBENR -

years:
Temporary
difference
BREH
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2014 RK201451 7418 -
Credit to profit or loss FFAEZ=E 2,112
At 31 December 2014 72014512 A31H 2,112
Charge to profit or loss Mk BEz= (758)
At 31 December 2015 2015512 H31H 1,354

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against
its future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets relating to
unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

20155

EELARABRROARAE

REBFBEZRIER  RBBRAE
WoFUKEE A RNERTAE -
BRI AR B Y AERAETENIRE
B RASERH T HRRBE N A RE
RZEREVAEERSBRE i

=
o ©
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35.

36.

Y 7144

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 35. RERIE(Z)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RIREH R - REE 0] K HE B
had estimated unused tax losses of approximately NEBHRGNOETRE B
RMB11,216,000 (2014: RMB5,824,000) and approximately BEB S B4 AR 11,216,000 7T
of HKD 10,335,000 (2014: HKD35,000) available for (20144 : AR¥5,824,0007T) &4
offset against future profits in the PRC and Hong Kong 10,335,0007% 7L (20144 : 35,000/5
respectively. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in TT) o EPAARBE TR ORI R B E F R - i
respect of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability A ABEMGEEERELEHRIEE
of future profits stream. The tax losses arising from the PRC B FREREEANREEENEHE
operations expire five years after the relevant accounting BT FAENFER BHEMERE
year end. The tax losses arising from other operations do ERNRBERERBRIBRREERD
not expire under current tax legislation in the relevant tax RTHETEfEm ©
jurisdiction.
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HE—FRMELT
During the year ended 31 December 2014 #E2014F12A31ALLEE
Shenzhen Jinma Innovation Development Company FUNFLEEIFHBEFTRL B ([ FI
Limited (“Shenzhen Jinma”) 25 /)
On 10 December 2014, the Group had disposed M2014512 81080 - KEESE HERF
of its 100% equity interests of Shenzhen Jinma to NEFH100% MR A E= THEYE =
an independent third party at a consideration of 7 REAARK1,000,0007T © &I
RMB1,000,000. The net assets of Shenzhen Jinma at the £SREEEEMNEEFENT
date of disposal were as follows:
Shenzhen
Jinma
F&H
RMB’000
ARETTT
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEETE
Bank balances and cash IRITHER IR E 997
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: & — R fT B A Rl AY Uk s
Consideration received EHRE 1,000
Net assets disposed of BHEEETFE (997)
Gain on disposal HHeE 3
Payment manner: YA
Cash received BY3RE 1,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: RELERSHAFE :
Cash consideration RERE 1,000
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B MERITEBEIRS (997)
3
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37.

20155

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
During the year ended 31 December 2014

Chung Hwa Finance Limited (“Chung Hwa Finance”)
(formerly known as “Newpont Finance Limited”)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 5 June
2014, the Group has acquired 100% equity interests in
Chung Hwa Finance from an independent third party at
a total cash consideration of HKD1,800,000 (the “Chung
Hwa Finance Acquisition”). Chung Hwa Finance was
principally engaged in money lending business in Hong
Kong. It is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong and is a licensed money lender under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the laws of Hong
Kong).

The Chung Hwa Finance Acquisition was completed on
30 May 2014, the date of which the Group had obtained
the control in Newpont Finance. Upon the completion,
Newpont Finance became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group and the Group commenced the money lending
business in Hong Kong.

EELORBRROARAR

37.

I iE—REEA R
#$F2014F12A31HILEE

PEERFRLE ([ FEER ) (FIE
[#FFBIER B2 5] )

BIEAANB B A2014F6 ASHAA
& AEBERBYE = HIKEPER
E100% KA - #E1,800,000
B[P EFERESE]) - RER
BEXEZNEBNENEER  REHB
A HER AR REBEEENE
163ZMEAMEHIE T HIFEREA -

FECEHERESEEDMN2014F5 530
A  AEBRZAESHABEE
RIEHIE - RERE - TFEER A
REBHL2EHRBAR  KEEBDHE
EBERNEER -
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 37.
During the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)

Chung Hwa Finance Limited (“Chung Hwa Finance”)

IiE—RMEAR(Z)
B FE2014F12A31BILEE(E)

PEERFRLE ([ FEER ) (FIE

(Formerly known as “Newpont Finance Limited”) [FF#EEERLE ) (EZ)
(Continued)
The Directors are of the opinion that the Chung Hwa EER2E RELENEENBER
Finance’s assets and liabilities approximate their fair values. HAREBEHRS FESCEWESE
The net assets acquired from the Chung Hwa Finance kR S E R EmEAEMEENn
Acquisition and the goodwill arising are as follows: T
Fair value
N[REE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Net assets acquired: W EEFE
Long-term loan receivables REAEWE K 63
Short-term loan receivables (net of allowance for R E SR (R RERELD
impairment of approximately RMB191,000) AR#191,0007T) 50
Bank balances and cash RITRB RIS 42
Trade payables FERTERER (26)
129
Goodwill arising from Chung Hwa Finance (Note 17) KB EEEENEE(HZ17) 1,320
Consideration RE 1,449
Payment manner: XA
Cash paid EfNEE 1,449
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: AU EERIR SR F58
Cash consideration ReRE (1,449)
Add: Bank balances and cash acquired hn o PRI IRITAESR IR 42
(1,407)
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37.

38.

20155

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)

Chung Hwa Finance Limited (“Chung Hwa Finance”)
(Formerly known as “Newpont Finance Limited”)
(Continued)

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purpose.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2014 is approximately RMB1,926,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Chung Hwa Finance.
Approximately RMB2,048,000 revenue had been
contributed from Chung Hwa Finance to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Had the acquisition of Chung Hwa Finance been completed
on 1 January 2014, the Group's revenue for the year would
have been approximately RMB86,293,000 and profit for
the year would have been approximately RMB42,818,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group maintains various retirement schemes for
its employees. The retirement scheme for employees of
the PRC office is a mandatory central pension scheme
organised by the PRC government, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions
made are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and charged as expenses when the employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contribution.
The employer contributions vest fully once they are
made. The Group’s Hong Kong employees are covered
by the Mandatory Provident Fund, which is managed
by an independent trustee. The Group and its Hong
Kong employees each make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ income with the
maximum contribution by each of the Group and the
employees limited to HK$1,250 per month prior to June
2014 and HK$1,500 after June 2014.

EELORBRROARAR

37.

38.

IiE—RMEAR(Z)
#HE2014F12A31BILEE (&)

HEERFRLE ([ PEER ) (BB
[FFFBIERERLB]]) (&)

Rt BN R RE LN BRG]
i -

HZE2014F 12831 B IEEEHF B
EREFECFEEMEBOARE
1,926,0007T ° & ZE2014412HA31H
IEFE - PECERAS BT R
# N R #2,048,0007T °

EPEECZECR2014F1 818 R
K AREBHFARRSEFHAEARE
86,293,000 L R FNHF B ABAR
#42,818,0007T ° EHZE R TH{EHS
Z  WIEWEWER2014F1 18 5%E
RASEEERAER NS BND RE
EMTER - MIERBEEMTEA -

RFEFIEE

AEB AHREB R TRARIKEF
e AEERTPEZHERAERE
8 28— i B TR A 2 sa
ROGRRETE] - ZETBI B EEASE
BvEESRAGTN - HRTIEEER
EEHFHMzEDLLETE WNMEER
HLEAZZZEHRZ RISETE
Ak - BEHEZK—BEL - B2
SRIEBAE - AEBARAREERY
BEEEE HBUREAETE - K
EENEFBEEFEAYMARE
BURABI5% HaZzsr SEL 3k - B
2014F6 Az k218 - REBRE
BEZ2EF AR ERDRIA1,250% 7T
1,500/ 7T °
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39. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under FRRBLEHE N

operating leases during the year HIRAENR

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from
one to two years (2014: one year). None of the leases
included contingent rentals and terms of renewal were
established in the leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

EEHR
EREEREEA
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARMETT
427 144

KERERANAEBRES TEFE
FERMMAE  HOREEHESERE
BEH—EWME(2014F - —F) - i E
AABERARE RETIEZRALY
REETE °

RBREBR - AEBRIE AL
ERRAON T EIE B 2 KK &K e
THEAENT -

Within one year —FR
In the second to FTEERF
fifth years inclusive (RIZERMT)

I 148

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
160 13

139 -

299 13
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 40.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following capital commitment:

BE kiR

RIBEMR - AEBEFATERASE :

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not AR I EIEHI D ET41E 4
provided in the consolidated financial RINGRE B TSR NS
statements in respect of: MWEARRX
(i)  Capital contribution to Chung Hwa () MPEEERREAT
Finance Limited FE 93,525 -
(iiy Capital contribution to Shenzhen (i) MFEINREEE
Zhonghe 1,000 =
(iiiy Acquisition of 30% equity interest of  (iii) Ui /8 EEHE30%
Hai Yue Real Estate (Note 22) It (fiat22)
20,000 =
(iv) Acquisition of 70% equity interest of  (iv) WS ZEYIRET0%
Shenzhen Zhong De (Note 21) R aE21) - 70,000
(v) Property development activities () MEERERER 276,758 224,214
391,283 294,214
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. HREAFXD

(a) During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, the identified related party which has
transaction with the Group was as follows:

Name of the Company

it £-1

Jinma Asset

Mr. Ma Zhong Hong
BERLAE

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

(@) & 220154 &2014F12 A 31
AILFE  EAREEETRS
MEHRIERIT

Relationships with the Company
¥ NS

A controlling shareholder of the Company

ARRHFERR

A controlling shareholder of Jinma Asset

& HFEENEREBER
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41.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the balances of

related parties are as follows:

Name of related party

41.

REARXH(E)

(a)

Amount due to ultimate holding company &~ fx 4332 A% A Bl FIAE

(Note)
—Jinma Asset

Note:

The balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable

on demand.

(b) Compensation of directors and key

management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members
of key management during the years were as

follows:

(b)

(#)

REEHR - BE T B4R
T @

RET B8
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
- 2,000

Short-term benefits

Contributions to retirement benefits

schemes

The remuneration of Directors and key executives
are determined by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to the performance of individuals

and market trends.

B 150

ySEULER
RIRBHRIET IR

Annual Report 2015

wiit -

ERAEER REWERERE

ESREEEEARHTH

FR BEFREMFBREEA
BEFBNT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
1,681 1,378

113 106

1,794 1,484

ESEREBTHRAEBNHMI
R E B A IR R T ILR i

MEZESETE -
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42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. MWEBLTEHE
Particulars of the subsidiaries held by the Company at 31 20154 201412 A31 B A A )
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: ABHHEBATSEMISRNT
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid-up/issued Proportion voting
registration/ (Class of registered ownership interest power held by~ Principal
Name of subsidiary operation shares held capital held by the Company the Company  activities
e/
BE/ B/ RiTH NG
WELREHR ERE HERGER ithEs FARRERAREERLA REELA  EERR
Directly Indirectly

Ef
o I o I

Rk
2014

Zhongfang Chaozhou PRC NA  RMB150,000,000  100%  100% 100%  100%  Construction of
M HE el AR infrastructure
150,000,00070 and
development
of properties
ERRmERR
VIELES

Chaozhou Construction and PRC NA  RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100%  Notcommence
Development Company Limited* HE oyl ARE business

AN e RRERRAR 1,000,0007C RARE

Beijing Shen Shang Investment & PRC WA RMB1,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
Consulting Company Limited* i NER ARE omE%
("Beijing Shen Shang”) 1,000,0007

I REERERAARAR

( BEgd) )

Shenzhen Shen Wu Investment & PRC WA RMB1,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
Development Company Limited* HE TEm AR FaELy
("Shenzhen Shen Wu") 1,000,007

RITLRAERARAT

( DRIt )

Shenzhen Shen He Chuang PRC NA  RMBT,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
Jian Investment Development i NER AEH# fmex
Company Limited* 1,000,0007

("Shenzhen Shen He")
AImINE R EERER AT

(TRYIER )

Shenzhen Shen Shang Chuang PRC A RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
Jian Investment Development e NER AEH# fmex
Company Limited* 1,000,0007

("Shenzhen Shen Shang")
HImEeRREERERAT
([IE))
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42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. MEBLABHERSZE)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid-up/issued Proportion voting
registration/ Class of registered ownership interest power held by Principal
Name of subsidiary operation  shares held capital held by the Company the Company  activities
e/
Big/ BHR /BT XL
HELTRE BRuE FRRGEN T2 FLTRARARRALA RRERA  EERE
Directly Indirectly
E& itk
m 2014 m 2014 m 2014
Shenzhen National Asia Fund PRC A RMB10,000,000 - - 100% - 100% - Inactive
Management Limited* e NER AE# fmex
MTERENEEERERAT 10,000,007
(Note ) (#zti)
Shenzhen Shi Cheng He Chuang PRC NA  RMB1,000,000 - - 100% - 100% - Investment
Jian Investment and Development i TER ARE holding
Company Limited* ("Shenzhen 1,000,000 RARR

Chenghe”) (Note )
RITREHRRERRARAR

(W)

Shenzhen Zhonghe Chuangjian PRC A RMB1,000,000 - - 100% - 100% - Not commence
Investment and Development P TR AR% business
Company Limited* (“Shenzhen 1,000,0007T RARE
Zhonghe") (Note i and Note i)

MITRARRERRERAT

(Wikhist)

Kingma Overseas Investment HK Ordinary US$20,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Securities
Development Corporation Bk Liak 20,000%7 Investrent
Limited FHRE

RBIREERARAR

Chung Hwa Finance Limited HK Ordinary HKD10,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Creditbusiness
(formerly known as Newpont B LER 10,0007 EEER
Finance Limited)

hEEEARAT

(HIEAEERRAR)

Sichuang Overseas Investment HK Ordinary US$20,000 - - 100% - 100% - Securities
Development Limited Bk Liak 20,000%7 investrent
("Sichuang Overseas") (Note } FHRE

BEBNRAYRARAA
(TRE8SN ) (W)
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42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Paid-up/issued
registration/ (Class of registered
Name of subsidiary operation shares held capital
B/
B/ BHE /B
HELFER ERME FEROEN EREx
Kingma International Ltd. (Note i) B! Ordinary US§1
SEARARAR (Hit) AERAEE Bk E3
Sichuang International Ltd. (Note j BV Ordinary Uss1
BEERERLA H) ZERAES EER E3
Modern Key International Limited BVI Ordinary US$1,000
FEAERERAT AERAEHE LR 1,000%7
* English name for identification only

All of the above subsidiaries are limited company which
the places of operations are the same as their places of
incorporation.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period or at any
time during the year.

Notes:

(i) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31
December 2015.

(i) The registered capital of RMB1,000,000 has not been paid up
at 31 December 2015.

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

ownership interest

42. MEBLTHEE)
Proportion of
Proportion voting

power held by~ Principal

held by the Company the Company  activities
KLRRR
FATRARARRALA RRERA  XERE
Directly Indirectly
&

o

&
o -

100%

100%

100%

- 100% - Not commence
business

HARR

- 100% - Not commence
business

RARR

- 100% - Not commence
business

FARR

S NS R il

PTG LSt Y B ) oz 2 56 3 B B i
P EGAEIR) o

BEME AR ER EMRERERARK
REREAIRERERNETES

REZE2015F12 A31 B IEFEFHTE
fBakaz -

M2015F 128318 » #MELRAR
#1,000,0007C M ALRE ©
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43.

I 154

STATEMENT OF FINAN

CIAL POSITION AND

RESOURCES OF THE COMPANY

43. FLAFIMBRARRER

Notes

Hrst

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a subsidiary
Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
REBRRIRE

R EyEE

FEW P A B RIE
H A FEUR
RITABRRIRS

wENRER

(@)

®)

Hi e & T E R
N —FEHEBARFE  (©

HIAAE

RENEERE
HERE
RER R
[LEN

e

s

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 29 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing
IREEA

Ming

Director

EZE

Annual Report 2015

(@

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFTT
193,688 143,688
614,167 336,604
8 102,188

2,833 2,578
617,008 441,370
1,830 2,227
60,877 32,000
4,799 4,799
67,506 39,026
549,502 402,344
743,190 546,032
1,224,480 1,020,400
(481,290) (474,368)
743,190 546,032

KRBT BARLER  EEEER
2016F3 A29H xR IR #ESH - W
AT EERERERE

Deng Xiao Gang

B HR
Director

EF

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43,
RESOURCES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

FAFIMBRRRREIR(Z)

Notes: Bt -
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RETB A RIHIRE

2014

RMB'000

AREFIT

Unlisted shares, at cost E LT - KA 193,698 143,698

Less: Accumulated impairment allowance B BEDREZEE (10) (10)

193,688 143,688

(b) Apart from Zhongfang Chaozhou, the amounts due from (b)
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment for both year.

At 31 December 2015, the amount due from Zhongfang
Chaozhou is unsecured, non-interest bearing (2014: bear
interest of 7.74% per annum) and is repayable within one
year.

() The amount due to a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest ()
bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment.

BT HREEMM - REZMEFE - EK
MBRARFIAREERR RS BWE
EITE BE TR o

R2015%F 128318 « B FE M
FIEAEEE - 28 (2014F : &S
F7.74EFE) » WER—FAEE -

e — RPN B X R FRIR A ERAR - R

BRI EEFEHERS -

(d) Reserves (d) i
Statutory
Share surplus Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
EERR
BFRE LEE AitEsE #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR¥ETRT ARBTT ARETRT
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Kati) (Hiatii)
At 1 January 2014 #2014 1 818 323,258 103,215 (936,983) (510,510)
Profit for the year, representing total ~ EREF| - KRER
comprehensive income for the year 2ENELERE = = 36,142 36,142
At 31 December 2014 and M2014F128318 K
1 January 2015 20151818 323,258 103,215 (900,841) (474,368)
Loss for the year, representing total FRERE  REFA
comprehensive expense for the year 2 E X %58 = = (6,090) (6,090)
Transaction costs attributable to BATHRR 48RS
issuance of H-shares RHEA (832) = = (832)
At 31 December 2015 7201551283180 322,426 103,215 (906,931) (481,290)

20155

EELARABRROARAE
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43.

44,

Y 156

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESOURCES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(d)

Reserves (Continued)
Notes:
(i) Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the value
of net assets acquired and the nominal value of state
shares issued as a result of the incorporation of the
Company as a joint stock limited company and the
share premium from the issuance of H-shares.

(i) Statutory surplus reserve

The Company is required to set aside 10% of its
profit after taxation prepared in accordance with
the PRC accounting regulations to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of
their respective paid up capital or registered capital,
where further appropriation will be at the directors’
recommendation. Such reserve can be used to
reduce any losses incurred or to increase the capital.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 6 January 2016, Beijing Shen Shang, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Joint
Venture Party”) and Hong Kong Multi-ldeas
Chip Investment Holdings Limited (the “Joint
Venture Partner”) entered into the Memorandum
of Understanding (“MOU"), pursuant to which
the Joint Venture Party and the Joint Venture
Partner intend to establish a domestic company
("Joint Venture Company”) in the PRC with the
initial registered share capital of approximately
HK$100,000,000 to market the reconfigurable
security processor. Pursuant to the MOU, should
the Joint Venture Party and the Joint Venture
Partner fail to execute a formal agreement within
60 days from the date of the MOU, the MOU
shall lapse. Since no formal agreement has been
entered into between the Joint Venture Party and
the Joint Venture Partner in respect of the Joint
Venture Company on or before 5 March 2016, the
MOU has lapsed and ceased to take effect. Details
of the MOU has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 7 January 2016.

Annual Report 2015

43,

44,

FAFIMBRRRREIR(Z)

@ G
Hist
0 EARE

AR ESERENFEE
EBEMNARBERROHAE
PR A R REM AL M B 7T RO B
BREEZHENEER AR
BEATHRRPTEE A VA4 B -

(ii) EERBRNED

BREFESFHER - AAA
BERBREFPEL10%
EREEEHBATES  HE
EHREIRESEDHER
A M EARKS0% @ #E—
TRBERBEEEZ - %
ARESAIAAERSBEAE
BT EFIE S AR A o

BEMKEEH

(@ MR2016F1A6H @ L F7ER
(ARRZEHBAR  [AE
HEEEZBERERILE
ERAR(EERMH]) TR
BET([FREETE]) B
It - BEFHEEERHERES
BRY—FKAAG([EER

Al NHERBEHELZE
BEHEs

60 H W Z S IER sk

HE)RERIE
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

20155

On 11 January 2016, Shenzhen Zhonghe, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
acquisition agreement with the vendors to acquire
30% equity interest of Shishi Shen Guo Tou
Commercial Property Company Limited* /%05 E
ST B X AER/AT] (“Shishi Shen Guo Tou”) for
a total consideration of RMB150,000,000. Shishi
Shen Guo is principally engaged in the commercial
and real estate investment in the PRC. Details of the
acquisition has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 12 January 2016.

On 19 January 2016, the Company and the placing
agent entered into a conditional placing agreement
in respect of the placing of an aggregated of up to
100,896,000 new H-Shares at the placing price of
RMB1 (equivalent to approximately HK$1.19) per
placing share. The net proceeds from the placing
is approximately HKD117,640,000 and the placing
has been completed on 11 February 2016. Details
of the placing has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 January 2016 and 11
February 2016, respectively.

On 21 January 2016, Sichung Overseas, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with Dong Gui Jin (“Transferee
I”) and Lu Shng Min (“Transferee 11”), pursuant
to which Sichung Overseas agreed to transfer
the ARHL Convertible Bonds with a principal
amount of HK$27,360,000 to Transferee | at
consideration of HK$27,360,000 and a principal
amount of HK$28,800,000 to Transferee Il at a
consideration of HK$28,800,000 (the “ARHL CB
Transfer”). The total consideration for the ARHL
CB Transfer is HK$56,160,000. Details of the ARHL
CB Transfer has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 January 2016.

EELARABRROARAE

44,

BEMREEMHE)

(b)

R2016F1 8118 @ FINRAE
(KRR2EWBAR)EZE
EARI M WERE  RARE
A R # 150,000,000 7T W & A
MERIKEAEXERRAF
([ARREEE])30% K H#E -
ARDREIE EBER RN ER
EREMEREFED - BEAW
BEENFBERARRBEHA
20161 B 12 BRI AEHRIFE o

7R2016F1819H + ARQ A
HEEREITVEKRGERES
Wik NABREREES
B ERMD ARBIT(HE
RE119B L) BEBEEA &
% 100,896,000 f% #1 H A% °
RMEZBEMERBIEENE
117,640,000/ 7T * B & F 18
ER2016F2811HEK - &
BREEETENFBERARQF
BEIH BIA20165E1 B198 &
20162 A1 B ASEHIFE -

R2016F1 8218 » BALEFSH
(KRB EWBAR)) HBEH
& ([FERBEA— D) EEHER(
BAZDET LB B B
278 5NE E LA B 27,360,000
BILAAREAN—EELRSE
/527,360,000 7% JT /) 55 M &
RAa R ES - UWERIARE
28,800,0007% It [A) A i A — 8
SE N4 %8 5 28,800,00058 TTHY
TN E IR TRk EH ([ M E
TRAT AR EHEE]) - &
R EFEENBRES
56,160,000/ 7T - B ME
TR ESFEENFBERA
AFIHEA20165F1 21 HH
NEREE -
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(e) On 4 February 2016, Shenzhen Tonghe Chuanjian
Investment Development Company Limited* ;23|
Fl &R EBREMREM AR, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company established in 2016,
and Shenzhen Galaxy Real Estate Development
Company Limited* RYITE N EHERZEER
/7] has jointly established a joint venture in the
PRC (the”Joint Venture”). The registered capital
of the Joint Venture are RMB10,000,000. Details
of the establishment of Joint Venture has been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
18 February 2016.

) On 18 December 2015, the Company and the
subscribers entered into a subscription agreement
in respect of allot and issue of an aggregated of
144,000,000 Domestic Shares at the subscription
price of RMB1 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1.196) per subscription share. The subscription
has been completed on 23 February 2016. Details
of the subscription has been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 December
2015 and 25 February 2016, respectively.

(9) On 3 March 2016, Shenzhen Chenghe, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, assigned the
Hai Yue proposed Acquisition to Shenzhen Tai He
Chung Jian Investment Development Company
Limited RINRSEIZIREERAREMERR], a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which
established in 2016.

(h) On 10 March 2016, the Company entered into an
acquisition agreement with an independent third
party to acquire 28% equity interest in Shenzhen
Hui Ye Micro Lending Company Limited*#3|
TIEZE/NFEEXBMR A A for a consideration of
RMB42,000,000.

(i) On 15 March 2016, Shenzhen Shen He, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a disposal agreement with an independent third
party, to dispose of the entire equity interest of
Shenzhen Chenghe for a total consideration of
RMB44,000,000. Up to the date of this report,
RMB2,000,000 has been received from the
independent third party.

* For identification purpose only.

44,

*

BEMREEMHE)

(e)

R20165E2 A48 » FIImRE
RREEREZEEREMER
AI(ARRATR2016FEKIHE
BB AR ERITENE
HERMZEAR AR F B LR
REGERE(TEERE]) -
AEPENTMERNABARK
10,000,000 7C > B B 3 A&
EhENFBNALTBEA
201652 A 18HRIAEHIFFE -

2015912 188 » ARAR]H
ZERBAIVRERZ - A
AENEEFRBERND ARE
170 (FBE R4 1.1967T ) Bl 2%
K % 77 & F£144,000,000 f% A
B - RIBEIEEMR2016%F2
H23B5%EMK - BARESFIED
FERART HES B A2015
F12H18H K201642 A25H
I AERIEEE o

R20165E3 A3H » FIHA
(ARRIZEM B AR AFY
ZERERERRAEREER
A(ARRABN2016EKIHE
BB AR ERGEEZUE
£IF °

R2016F3 A 10H » AR A HE
BB =AW - IR
KRB AR #42,000,0007T 48
FIITHIEZENEERBER AR
28%Mes ©

7201638158 » F YL A
(RRalz2EMBRAR)HEEL
F=FFIMHEWE - RER
B AR #¥44,000,0007T H &R
&2 I - BEARE
BE ERBIE=ZFREIA
R #2,000,0007T °

s
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Financial Summary

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Turnover

Revenue

Sales taxes on turnover

Cost of sales

Other income

Gain on disposal of assets and
liabilities classified
as held for sale

Waived of debt of
other payables

Finance cost

Exchange gain

Fair value change on
convertible instruments designed
as financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value change on
contingent consideration

(Loss) gain on disposal of
subsidiaries, net

Fair value change on
held-for-trading investments

Fair value loss on step
acquisition of a subsidiary

Gain on deregistration on
a subsidiary

Fair value change of
investment properties, net

(Loss) gain on disposal of held-for-
trading investments

Administrative and other operating
expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax (expenses) credit

(Loss) profit for the year from
continuing operations

Loss for the year on discontinued
operations

(Loss) profit for the year
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) profit attributable to
owners of the Company

20155

eS|

WA

BRBEHEN

EESIEN

L ON

HED BRRHE
HEZEER
Afa e

ERREMRMNK

(T

FIRA

P 5 das

REREAREEFARS
WA EENIRRTA

HIAREBELREBEED

HENBRR(BR)
Wit # 8
HFEEREZ
EHWE-RNBLR
Z DR BEER
B — BB R
Hezs
REMERNEER
i
HERFREREN
(B8 gz
TR EGEERX

FRRATRT
IS (FsO) B

TREERBEN
(B

RIEBERBFR
R

FA(EH) R
IS

XA LN
(&R &%

EELARABRROARAE

FeRa%k
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG ApHl ARETT  ARETT ARETT AR%ETRT
342,523 86,248 336,800 10,160 22,879
311,400 86,248 336,800 10,160 22,879
(765) (431) (1,679) (554) (1,199)
(293,945) (80,932) (303,863) (792) (1,901)
2,077 2,042 545 121 178
- 45,677 - = =
- = = = 25,065
(531) = = = =
11,578 = = S =
1,084 = = = =
- = - 30,500 =
- 3 - (1,547) 8,225
(7.917) - (66) - _
- = = (48) =
- = = = (12,900)
- = = 800 38,300
(9,377) (561) (161) = 162
(9,880) (6,830) (14,088) (5,637) (14,209)
3,724 45216 17,488 33,003 64,600
(6,497) (1,155) (5,849) (5,877) (11,950)
(2,173) 44,061 11,639 27,126 52,650
- = = = (11,740)
(2,773) 44,061 11,639 27,126 40,910
- = = = (4,702)
(2,773) 44,061 11,639 27,126 45,612
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Financial Summary

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets FERBEE
Current assets MENBE
Current liabilities mEaE

Net current assets MENBEF5

Total assets less current #2A&ERGE &G

liabilities

Capital and reserves: B (i -

Share capital L&
Reserves {1
Total equity g

Non-current liabilities ~ FEREEE

B 160

FEeMBERAER
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS sl ARBTT ARETT AR®TE ARETR
334,643 127,209 107,133 76,486 222,307
589,703 642,273 1,226,012 1,133,161 346,662
(134,624) (181,551) (789,455) (674,744) (49,745)
455,079 460,722 436,557 458,417 296,917
788,722 587,931 543,690 534,903 519,224
1,224,480 1,020,400 1,020,400 1,020,400 1,020,400
(435,758) (432,469) (476,710) (488,297) (515,157)
788,722 587,931 543,690 532,103 505,243
- = = 2,800 13,981
788,722 587,931 543,690 534,903 519,224
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Glossary

ERAAR

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following NARE  BXESEAE  UTHA=EES
expressions shall have the following respective meanings. AR ©

“2014 Corresponding Period”

[20145F[E R ]

“2015 Financial Year”

[2015F B FE |

“ARHL"

[EEMEIR]

“ARHL CB”

[N E R AT ES
“ARHL Shares”

[ TN &R

“Articles”
IPNGIERE

“Board”

[EFg]

“Company”
[ARAFE]]

“Chung Hwa Finance”
[FhEEE]

"CSRC”
[PEEES

“Director(s)”

[E=]
“Domestic Shares”

[RERK]

for the year ended 31 December 2014
BZ2014F12831BHIEFE

for the year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HIEFE

Asia Resources Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability and the issued shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 899)

TMNERERERAE - RERETMAZNBER AR - HEBITRORBER
P EAR £ (AR AD 5% - 899)

the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$432 million
issued by ARHL pursuant to ARHL CB placing agreement date 21 May 2015
TMEIRIRIE AR R2015F5 A21 B M ERAIBERESEERZEITAD
HEEAR = /432,000,0007% T B AT AR B

share of ARHL
oM E RIS

The Articles of the Company
RARB AT ER

the board of Directors

BFg

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited*
&S NRERROARLDE

Chung Hwa Finance Limited (formerly known as Newpont Finance Limited), a
licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance
RECEARAR(AIEFBEERR AR - REBECGREAMRHIDE B BRI
fBA

China Securities Regulatory Commission
THRESEEEEZE®

the directors of the Company

ARABES

domestic shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for in RMB

ADRBRAREREAEARK TONER - UARKRE
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Glossary

HERAAR

“General Mandate 2014"

(2014~ i1

“General Mandate 2015”

[2015—HRI%HE |

“Group”
[REE

“Guangzhou Zhongzhan”

[EM PR

“Hai Yue Real Estate”

[ EREHE ]

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“H-Shares”

[HAk ]

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

(B =77

“Kingma Overseas”
[& K8 ]

I 162

the general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2014, pursuant to which the
Directors are authorised to allot, issue and deal with each of the H-Shares and
Domestic Shares with an aggregate nominal amount of up to but not exceeding
20% of the then aggregate nominal amount of H-Shares and Domestic Shares,
respectively

RART2014F6 A27BBTHRRBFAG LERRE TEFHN —RRE -
Bt ERERELE  BTREBAMERRETBBHRRAER SRR
E{E20% HIHAR K& A& AR

the general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2015, pursuant to which the
Directors are authorised to allot, issue and deal with each of the H-Shares and
Domestic Shares with an aggregate nominal amount of up to but not exceeding
20% of the then aggregate nominal amount of H-Shares and Domestic Shares,

respectively

RARTE2015F6 A24RRTHRRBFAS LERRE TEEN —RETE
Bt EFERERE  BOREERELAHESRSETBBAHREANERERKE
E{E20% HIHAR K& A& AR

the Company and its subsidiaries

AARREMEAR

Guangzhou Zhongzhan Investment Holdings Company Limited*

BN REEERER QA

Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development Company Limited*

BENEERHERRER DA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
hE ARANBEEERITTHR

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB1 each, all of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars
RRABRAFEREEARBITT IR EHINEEBIR - 2EBHEBRAAER
FARABTREREE

the independent third party(ies) who is/are, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry,
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

REH—IEBERE - RERRA - SEREE - BURARAREFAEA
T(EER EMARREBILE=

Kingma Overseas Investment Development Corporate Limited
SHBIMKEBRRER AR

Annual Report 2015  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Glossary

ERAAR

“Listing Rules”

[ EmRAI

“Model Code”
[1Z2E=rRI

“PRC”
[ EE ]

“RMB”

[ARE ]

“SFO"

[ &5 K HE &0 ]
“Share”

[ |
“Shareholders”

[BCR

“Shenzhen Chengxin”

[ARIIFE

“Shenzhen Cheng He”
RYIIEE

“Shenzhen Jinma”
FYe5 ]

“Shenzhen Shen He”

[ARILAN

“Shenzhen Shen Shang”

[T

“Shenzhen Tong He”

[FIIFEA ]

“Shenzhen Zhong De”
[RYIIREE ]

“Shenzhen Zhonghe”
RYIRE |

“Shishi Shen Guo Tou”
[ A RHZRE

2015 EBEAHZEEROERAT

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B P S AR A

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

ERETABZETESFRZFHRESTR

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR HFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

REAESBARE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the law of Hong Kong)

&7 LG ERG(BEEDISTNE)

H-Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)
HA& & & B

holders of the H-Shares and Domestic Shares

HA & A& B A A

Shenzhen Chengxin Xingye Trading Company Limited*
AYHBEREEZBRAF

Shenzhen Cheng He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*
YT AR EERER AT

Shenzhen Jinma Innovation Development Company Limited*

I FEHMBERERDF]

Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*

AL ME R ERRAR AT

Shenzhen Shen Shang Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*
AL E AR EERAR AT

Shenzhen Tong He Chuangjian Investment Development Company Limited*
RYTREEEREERBRETAF

Shenzhen Zhong De Logistics Company Limited*
R RERBR AR

Shenzhen Zhonghe Chuangjian Investment and Development Company Limited*

AT RE B EREERBRAF]

Shishi Shen Guo Tou Commercial Property Company Limited*
AMABREAEXER AR
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Glossary

HERAAR

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 FFT

“Wuhan Yi Da”
[EZEHE |

“Zhongfang Chaozhou”
[ N ]

“Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan
Industrial Park Project”
[ EHMNEETEEER ]

*  For identification purpose only

Y 164

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBBER AR AR

Wuhan Yi Da Construction Services Shares Company Limited*

REREZRRGBRNBRAT]

Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited*

hEBMNRERERR QA
a infrastructure construction project in Jing Man Industrial Park, in Chaozhou
RIS B TR E A B R i RIE B

* EHREE

Annual Report 2015
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